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15
16

ITEM NO.1:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel.) We shall bring to order the

18

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting.

19

We are on the 18th of March, 2004, continuing

20

the review of the Fiscal Year 2005 budget

21

consideration.
Members, we have requests for testimony

22

23

this morning, so we will take that up first

24

thing from the agenda, and then we will move on

25

to the continuation of the Departments' reviews.
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1

Before we start, most of you are very

2

seasoned and veteran testifiers, so I am sure

3

you know of the Committee's rules regarding

4

three minutes, at which time the staff will

5

inform you that you have reached that mark, and

6

that I will be asking you to conclude your

7

comments.

8

you would like to present, please make it aware

9

to the staff, and we will be happy to distribute

If you do have something written, and

10

it out to all of the Members as well as keep

11

that available for public files.

12

If you have cell phones and pagers,

13

either turn it off, put it on silent.

14

tolerate interruptions in this meeting.
Saying that, we shall start first with

15
16

Miss Gladys Baisa.

17

me, so no disrespect to you, Gladys.

18

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

19

I do not

MS. BAlSA:

And all ladies are "Miss" to

Good morning, Chair Hokama and Council

20

Members.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MS. BAlSA:

Good morning.

My name is Gladys Baisa, and I am the

23

Executive Director of Maui Economic Opportunity,

24

Incorporated.

25

support of the Mayor's budget submission for the

I am here today to testify in
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1

county Departmehtof Housing and Human Concerns

2

for Fiscal Year 2005 as presented.
In particular, MEO is in support of the

3
4

increased appropriation for the Community

5

Partnership Grants.

6

that was made in Fiscal Year 2004, the proposed

7

increase will provide some relief to the social

8

service agencies whose clients were negatively

9

impacted following these draconian cuts.

In light of this huge cut

It

10

should be noted that even with the proposed

11

increase, agencies will still not be able to

12

restore services to pre-2004 levels as increased

13

costs and demands for service continue to erode

14

the status quo budget.

15

MEO would also like to express our

16

sincere appreciation for the line items that MEO

17

has received in the past and ask for your

18

continued support of these programs as they are

19

listed in the Mayor's line item budget.

20

We also ask for your support for other

21

line items that address our community's human

22

service needs.

23

with the prosperity and growth that Maui County

24

has experienced, social problems continue to

25

increase and the need to address affordable

As you are well aware, along
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1

housing, senior services! youth activities!

2

immigration services, substance abuse, and other

3

people needs has also grown.
We applaud you for the compassion and

4

5

concern that you have shown for the

6

disadvantaged citizens of Maui County, and we

7

humbly ask that you do whatever is feasible to

8

help those most in need by continuing and

9

increasing your support of this department!

10

which is so vital to our quality of life.

11

you for the opportunity to testify.

12

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

You are good, Gladys.

succinct.

Thank

That was very

Thank you, Ms. Baisa.

Members, any questions for Ms. Baisa on

14
15

her testimony this morning?

16

you very much for sharing your comments with us.

17

MS. BAlSA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

20

Seeing none, thank

Thank you.
Next we will Ms. "Joycelyn" or Jocelyn

Bouchard.
MS. BOUCHARD:

Thank you, Chair Hokama and Council

21

Members, for the opportunity to testify this

22

morning.

23

the Executive Director of Maui Humane Society.

24
25

My name is Jocelyn Bouchard, and I am

I want to testify this morning to the
amount allocated to the Maui Humane Society, and
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1

we do have some concerns.

2

more than we had last year for the Animal

3

Management program; however, one of the needs

4

that we have is a new vehicle.

5

recommendations and based on the amount of -- of

6

work the trucks do out in the field, we are due

7

to turn one in, which will cost us approximately

8

25,000 or so to replace that truck and the cage.

9

So what that leaves us is 15,000, approximately,

10

We did receive 10,000

As per County

short from what we received last year.
I have two concerns about that and the

11

12

first is a general one, and that is mentioned by

13

Mayor Arakawa in his comments to the paper about

14

the growing population and the need to reach, be

15

able to provide services to that growing

16

population.
About this time last year, the Maui

17
18

Humane Society closed its doors two days a week

19

and laid off a third of its staff, and we are

20

concerned that we have this ever-increasing

21

population, including now relaxed quarantine

22

laws, which will certainly add to the pet

23

population potentially, and yet we have less

24

money to provide those services.

25

services are shrinking in response to a growing

So our
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8

community.

2

And specifically, I need to speak to the

3

animal control officers who serve this community

4

in such a valuable way.

5

public safety with what they do in terms of

6

leash law.

7

some of the cases that have gone on in this

8

state and across the nation, and with dog bites

9

and things like that.

They really provide for

We are all familiar, I am sure, with

And not to mention the fact that our

10
11

officers are dealing with the same criminal

12

element that the Police Department is dealing

13

with, and the Police Department have expressed

14

their concerns about how things like the ice

15

problem are increasing the level of violence

16

that they are encountering.

17

familiar with that.

18

same element on a daily basis, and for that,

19

their pay starts at $10.60 an hour.

20

a big concern to me as the Executive Director of

21

this organization.

I know we are all

Our officers deal with that

And that is

In the past, my predecessors have made

22

23

up for the County end of the budget by applying

24

Humane Society or a nonprofit end funds to be

25

able to continue to provide the County
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1

functions, the functions that we are contracted

2

by the County to provide.

3

to do that in all honesty and in all -- and

4

and still be able to accomplish our goals,

5

because what the Humane Society portion

6

provides --

7

MS. KOLLER:

8

MS. BOUCHARD:

9

And I cannot continue

Three minutes.
-- is additional spay/neuter programs

and education, and ultimately, that is what is

10

going to get a handle on animals or animal

11

problems in our community.
So we ask the Council to please take a

12
13

look at our allocation in the budget and

14

consider increasing that accordingly.

15

for your time.

16
17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Any questions for

Ms. Bouchard this morning?

18

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, question.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I will yield.

Gentlemen, we will start and give

21

everyone their opportunity.

22

Mr. Kane.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We will start with

Sorry, Chair.

Good morning, Ms. Bouchard.

24

25

Thank you

MS. BOUCHARD:

Good morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I don't see written testimony in

2

front of us, and unless I am missing that, when

3

you say to make adjustments accordingly, I think

4

it would be advisable that -- I request that you

5

provide what "accordingly" means to you.

6

MS. BOUCHARD:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

9
10

Okay.
Now, you have made comments

about, you know, about addressing your concerns.
MS. BOUCHARD:

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I would appreciate you

11

forwarding to this Committee specifically what

12

"accordingly" means via dollar amounts.

13

MS. BOUCHARD:

Absolutely.

I can do that.

I have

14

that, so I will submit that to the Council.

15

Thank you.

16
17

18
19

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you very much, Chair.

Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Mr. Molina?

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

Mr. Nishiki?

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

I've seen, whether it's

21

people that need pets or when we watch on TV,

22

about our troops leaving to fighting in Iraq,

23

and

24

perhaps comfort people that have separated from

25

their spouses or even children.

th~y

have shown an introduction of dogs that
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However, the increasing concern that I

1

2

have seen also is a check on leash laws, and we

3

are seeing one incident that happened recently

4

in Kauai where a young child was bitten and

5

killed.
And because I live in an area where

6
7

there are a lot of ocean, in Kihei, beaches, I

8

have seen a growing amount of calls and

9

complaints from people that run their dogs in

10

the -- all times of the day, and no enforcement

11

of the leash law down there, fronting Keawakapu

12

Beach, especially.

13
14

What emphasis do you have in regards to
that enforcement --

15

MS. BOUCHARD:

Mm-hmm.

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

respond?

18

MS. BOUCHARD:

19

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Well, actually -and how quickly do you

I am sorry?
And how quickly do you respond?

20

Or are you who a private citizen would call, or

21

is it the Police Department?

22

MS. BOUCHARD:

We are who the private citizens call

23

for such problems, yes.

And we have a zero

24

tolerance on Maui's beaches; in other words, in

25

other areas of the community, we may try to
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1

provide education before we would cite for a

2

leash law offense.

3

the beaches.

We have zero tolerance on

However, you prove my point exactly in

4
5

that we are not able to meet the -- the demand,

6

the need in the community, to address these

7

problems because we simply do not have the staff

8

or the manpower to be everywhere at all times

9

and -- and really effectively handle these

10

problems.

You know, there's a lot of other

11

factors as well, from irresponsible pet

12

ownership, you know.

13

have six officers for this entire island, and we

14

are responding to a variety of different calls,

15

you know, some

16

through the cracks.

17

concern because we want to be able to provide

18

the level of service that this community needs,

19

you know, and should have, deserves.

But ultimately, if we only

some things are going to fall
And this is exactly our

In terms of our priorities, our

20
21

priorities, when we receive a call, are always

22

if there is somebody in danger, a human in

23

danger, an animal in danger that may be

24

suffering, those are going to be given our

25

priority.

And then leash law calls
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1

may be able to speak a little better to that

2

but leash law calls would probably -- or

3

off-leash calls would come right under that

4

because they could become a potential danger.

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, and I am not telling you

6

how to do your job, but, you know, Maui is still

7

small and personable, and I think that if you

8

cite somebody, then the rest of the people will

9

get the drift.

And I don't know if you look at

10

it in that manner.

11

Police Department goes out on a DUI patrol or

12

they go out on a seat belt thing or whatever, I

13

think it does prove effective.

14

MS. BOUCHARD:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16
17

I think, you know, when the

Mm-hmm.
Similarly, do you do anything

like that at all?
MS. BOUCHARD:

Yes.

As I say, we have zero tolerance

18

on the beaches, so if there's a loose dog on the

19

beaches and we can find an owner, because the

20

other problem is a lot of times the dog is just

21

running loose.

22

nothing to lead us to an owner.

23

obviously, a problem.

So that's,

But if we can find the owner for that

24

25

We have no idea, no tags,

animal, they will be cited if they are on a
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1

public beach, and -- and quite possibly in other

2

areas as well, but -- but in 100 percent of the

3

cases on the beaches.

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah! I can tell you for most

5

dogs that are on the beaches, the owner is right

6

there, doing an irresponsible thing.

7

what -- what effect it has for where I see,

8

especially in South Maui on these beaches, is

9

that, number one, a lot of the owners allow

10

their dogs to stool on the beach, you know,

11

and -- and then you have got a whole population

12

that has very young kids and everything else

13

that play in the sand where the stool is

14

located.

15

and also public safety.

16

you would concentrate on looking at some of

17

these beaches.

18

MS. BOUCHARD:

And -- and

So there's a concern for public health

Absolutely.

But I would hope that

And just to let you know,

19

as the -- as the mother of a young child myself,

20

I absolutely relate to that.

It just -- again,

21

it goes back to enforcement.

There are ways we

22

can approach things like waste on the beaches.

23

Other communities have installed actual -- you

24

know, where you can pull a baggy out right there

25

from sort of a kiosk or something like that.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

1

15

More enforcement, obviously.
You say that you see owners with their

2
3

dogs all the time, but I can guarantee you, when

4

our officer steps foot on the beaches, the

5

owners are usually in compliance.

6

problem we have are the people that live near

7

the beaches that are letting their dogs run

8

loose, and we have problems sometimes finding a

9

responsible owner for those particular dogs.

So the main

10

But if we were able to have a regular

11

presence, if we had enough manpower to have a

12

regular presence on the beaches, perhaps in

13

plain clothes, so we weren't as obvious, there

14

are ways we can address these problems, but not

15

given our current budget.
We, you know, we are stretched really as

16

17

thin as we can be right now.

18

these concerns and the importance of these

19

areas, and we are trying to address them as best

20

we can with our current resources.

21
22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I am done.

We do recognize

Thank you,

Mr. Chair.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

Good morning.

25
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1

MS. BOUCHARD:

Good morning.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

You mentioned that [ you

3

know, sometimes your officers are faced with

4

problems in regards to drugs.

5

handle that situation, and are they properly

6

trained to do that?

7

MS. BOUCHARD:

Yes.

How do they

Our officers have -- they

8

have -- I believe Aimee will speak to the

9

specific training that they receive.

They

10

have -- they could certainly get more training

11

towards that, and again, this is a funding

12

issue.

13

of training that our officers have not been able

14

to get due to a lack of funding.

There are a variety of different levels

So in terms of could they have more

15
16

training?

Absolutely.

How do they respond to an aggressive

17

18

individual?

They have to call for police backup

19

because we do not have anything beyond pepper

20

spray that our officers carry to defend

21

themselves.

22

problem.

So that is -- that is a real

And we have had -- there is a case right

23
24

now where our officers were assaulted trying to

25

do their job that's up before the courts.
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1

this is not uncommon.

This is a daily

2

occurrence, practically -- I think daily that

3

they receive some sort of verbal abuse, and

4

regularly that they receive some sort of

5

physical threat as well.
And you know, that's

6

as I say, with

7

the -- with the wages that they are earning,

8

it's very difficult to attract people to that

9

position/ retain them in that position, and

10

and do a good job because we are constantly

11

training new people.

12

that department.

13

months with a vacancy because we simply could

14

not find anybody willing to take on that

15

position for the wages we're offering.

18
19

We went I think eight, nine

And I will get some specific numbers, as

16

17

Councilmember Kane requested.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah/ if you could,

especially the turnover side.

20

MS. BOUCHARD:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

We have a big turnover in

Absolutely.
Thank you.

Ms. Tavares?
No.

Mr. Carroll?

Any further questions

for Ms. Bouchard this morning, Members?
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1

Ms. Johnson.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Jocelyn, you mentioned about

3

the, I guess, the relaxation of laws with regard

4

to quarantine.

5

experience any of the impacts or the effects of

6

people who now can bring their pets here and

7

then also creating a higher number of animals

8

that you are being faced with?

9

any of that yet?

10

MS. BOUCHARD:

Have you actually begun to

Have you seen

We have no factual evidence to

11

indicate that.

The only thing we are seeing at

12

this time is a slight decrease in adoptions,

13

which could be related to the fact that people

14

are bringing their pets in.

15

bringing their pets ini therefore, don't need to

16

adopt from us.

More people are

Nothing we can tie factually.

To be honest with you, my main concern

17

18

with the quarantine relaxation would be in

19

regards to the intact animals that come through

20

that are being brought specifically for breeding

21

purposes.

22

come through the quarantine system have to do a

23

lot to get through even though they are not

24

actually putting them in quarantine.

25

have -- we are optimistic that they will be

Because by and large, people that
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1

responsible pet owners.

We are talking about

2

the family that has one animal.
My concerns are more the people bringing

3
4

in the breeding stock, and the excitement that

5

has been verbalized even to me personally about

6

how great this is now because we will be able to

7

bring in more breeding-type animals, and so

8

that's definitely going to have an impact on us

9

in the long term.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So you are looking more at

11

the puppy mill kind of aspect of it, that when

12

the animals grow up that they would then be

13

abandoned.

14

MS. BOUCHARD:

That, and -- and intact, if -- there's

15

facts to back up that intact males, for example,

16

tend to be more aggressive and, you know,

17

they

18

female in heat, they will be causing problems.

19

So we will see -- I am sure our animal

when they run loose, looking for a

20

control department will see the repercussions of

21

this in terms of their work load as well.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much.

Any other questions, Members?

Seeing

24

none, thank you very much for your testimony

25

this morning.
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1

MS. BOUCHARD:

Okay.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Next is Miss Aimee Anderson.

3

MS. ANDERSON:

Good morning, Chair Hokama and

4

Council.

5

Jocelyn covered some of the things that are of

6

concern to us! but I want to address a couple of

7

things.

8
9

Thank you.

I am going to launch right into this.

All too often, the Humane Society and
the budget that comes with that is focused

10

around the cute doggie, puppy, kitten, cute,

11

fuzzy, warm, feeling stuff.

12

primary concern.

13

be and always will be public safety.

14

people that don't know a lot about the Humane

15

Society don't realize the law enforcement side

16

of our responsibilities, and that's what I am

17

here to testify about.

18

That is not our

Our primary concern has got to
I think

Wayne brought up some -- some issues

19

that I want to address.

Specifically, let me

20

give you some numbers.

21

10,000 calls, animal control calls, last year.

22

This year -- I should say last Fiscal Year, we

23

had a total of 51 dog-to-human bites.

24

Those are dog-to-human attacks.

25

year -- and it will end June 30th, because we

We responded to almost

Okay.

So far this
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1

run fiscally -- we are already up to 55 dog

2

bites.

3

possibility for fatality is a valid concern and

4

that is our concern as well.

5

properly address these cases?

And what Wayne brings up as far as the

How can we

And when we are talking about these

6
7

cases, we are not talking about just dogs and

8

cats.

9

and cats.

Many people think we just deal with dogs
We are legally responsible for all

10

species of animals, and believe me, we respond

11

to all species of animals.
We just had three horse-hit-by-car cases

12
13

just in the last two weeks.

That's just horses.

14

We have cattle cruelty, as we all remember, from

15

Perreira Ranch.

16

to deal with those type of cases.

17

important cases.

That is hugely labor intensive
They are very

So our concern is public safety.

18

Our

19

concern with the beaches -- that he brings up

20

kind of a thorn in my side.

21

We are surrounded by beaches.

22

beaches because people seem to think that

23

beaches are a lawless place where they can let

24

their dogs run free and nobody should tell them

25

otherwise.

We are an island.
There are dogs on
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That is not the case

1

l

and that is why we

2

did implement a zero tolerance policy in 1997 on

3

all beaches.

4

you are cited.

If your dog is loose on the beach,

Now, I will tell you

5

I

if the dog is

6

below the high -- normal high water mark, that

7

is out of our jurisdiction.

8

and we do not have jurisdiction to cite if that

9

dog is between the normal high water mark and

That is marine law,

10

the water, just to clarify for those of you that

11

are interested to know.
However, it's a losing battle because

12
13

the people and their dogs far outweigh our

14

manpower.

15

and that's in the perfect world when we have a

16

full staff, which is very difficult to do

17

because of the reasons that Jocelyn previously

18

mentioned -- those officers are running calls

19

all daYt allover the island.

20

six per day.

21

maximum of four per daYI and that includes Hana,

22

Kanai'ol Ulupalakua, Hanakohau Valley.

23

it, we have to be there.

24

be able to properly address all those people.

25

You would have to man somebody at that

If we have six full-time officers

And that's not

With days off, we only have a

So we are not going to
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1

particular beach at least during the daylight

2

hours.

3

MR. TAGUCHI:

4

MS. ANDERSON:

5

Three minutes.
Because when we're there -- oh , that

went fast.

I will finish up.

When we are there and we leave, you have

6
7

got the next car loads of people coming with

8

their dogs, so you would have to man somebody at

9

that beach at all times.

It is a real problem.

Jocelyn is going to get you the specific

10
11

numbers.

12

working animal control for this County that I am

13

a little bit frustrated and I am extremely

14

concerned at this point.

15

we have to come to the Council and beg to

16

survive.

17

growth, because we are a growing population, and

18

yet we are going backward.

19

our staff and we are closed two days a week.

20

That does not help our community.

21

help us, support us, and answer the question,

22

"When is it going to be our turn?"

23

very much.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I can only say out of 16 years of

I feel like every year

We need growth, like the County needs

We lost a third of

So please

Thank you

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Questions for Ms. Anderson this morning?

25
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We will start with Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Aimee, I think I have a hard

3

time understanding this territorial

4

below-the-high-water-mark law, if there is such

5

a law.

6

MS. ANDERSON:

Okay.

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

And why I say this is because

8

our Police Department enforces any law, be it a

9

county law or state law or federal law.

I mean,

10

that's given to police officers.

11

a law, it doesn't matter where it is located,

12

below the high water mark or whatever, you go

13

and you enforce.

14

So if there is

That's given to you.

Is your enforcement different?

And why

15

not, if there are existing laws that exist, why

16

can you not enforce below the high water mark,

17

which is where the dogs run on the beach, right?

18

So are you saying that you can't go and cite

19

these people?

20

MS. ANDERSON:

You certainly can, and we have.

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

MS. ANDERSON:

Okay.

And what happens is is the courts

23

throw it out, because it is marine law.

24

look, Wayne, in the state statutes for

25

animal-control-related issues or laws and you
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1

look at the County Codes, you will find that we

2

gain our authority and specifically can enforce

3

certain parts of the state statutes and certain

4

parts of the County Code.

5

have the jurisdiction to enforce, you know,

6

robberies, okay.

7

are -- we are basically dictated on what we can

8

enforce.

9

statute or County Code to enforce anything under

10
11
12

the marine laws.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15

MS. ANDERSON:

18

Yeah, I don't understand it, but

I guess we will look at that.
MS. ANDERSON:

17

That's a state law, but we

We are not authorized in any state

13

16

Obviously, we don't

Okay.
What is a marine law?

Marine law, my understanding, this is

according to the courts
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, I guess you have the

experience of the cases.

19

MS. ANDERSON:

Yes.

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

21

MS. ANDERSON:

Explain that.

What do they say?

The courts say that we do not have

22

jurisdiction to enforce marine law, and anything

23

under -- between the water itself and the normal

24

high water mark, falls under marine law, and

25

therefore, we do not have the jurisdiction to
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1

enforce the law in that area because it is

2

marine law area, which is extremely frustrating

3

for us because what we need to do is watch this

4

person, with their dog, and wait until they come

5

above the high water mark and then cite.

6

least cite, so we will have the citation

7

hopefully upheld in the courts.

8
9

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

At

Well, why don't -- why don't we

have more coordination, and when that occurs,

10

then you call the -- urn, what -- you know,

11

that's wasting your time.

12

or can you call, then, the agency that can

13

enforce?

14

MS. ANDERSON:

You can.

Why don't you call,

And we have.

Normally, the

15

response we get is that

you have to

16

understand, that is not necessarily priority of

17

those agencies.

18

perhaps it's more of a priority to us than it is

19

the agency that could enforce.

See, this is our job, so

Oftentimes, what we will get is a

20
21

delayed response or no response because they are

22

on other calls that take priority.

23

meanwhile, that person has since leashed their

24

dog and left the premises.

25

and utter waste of time.

So it is a complete
You are correct.
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those cases.
But understand! Wayne, that we get many

2
3

cases that are upheld when we cite on those

4

beaches.

5

mark.

6

running allover in the areas we can cite! and

7

trust me! we do.

8
9

10

Not everybody is below the high water

There are many people whose dogs are just

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

that are running on the beaches.
can cite?
MS. ANDERSON:

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14
15

So then, who

The Maui Police Department can cite?

11

13

Now! I am specific with those

I can't answer that.

I do not know.

So you never called them up

and -MS. ANDERSON:

No.

We have called State Harbors

because they are marine law.

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

MS. ANDERSON:

They are the ones?

As far as I am aware, correct.

I

18

can't answer for the police, because I don't

19

know their jurisdiction with marine law.

20
21
22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Can we expand your authority by

passing legislation?
MS. ANDERSON:

Since you are the legislators for this

23

County, I would probably throw that question

24

back to you.

25

that's possible, absolutely.

I would -- I would welcome it if
That would
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certainly make our job easier.

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Thank you.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

Good morning.

5

6

MS. ANDERSON:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

9
10

Thank you, Chair.

Hi, Joe.
You said that you have six

animal control officers.
MS. ANDERSON:

When we are full, yes.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

When you are full.

And

11

you mentioned that two days out of the week that

12

you are shut down?

13

MS. ANDERSON:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

16

Yes, we are.
So there's no animal

control officers two days a week?
MS. ANDERSON:

Yes, yes.

Presently there is, yes.

17

But what is happening is they are receiving

18

calls via the Police Department, so basically,

19

the calls they are receiving are not your normal

20

volume of calls, because obviously the people

21

can't call us directly.

22

on emergency situations.

They have to call more

But yes, we run animal control

23
24

presently, and I hope -- I hope that can

25

continue seven days a week, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So what would it take to

cover seven days week?
MS. ANDERSON:

What would it take?

It would take a

4

wage where I can keep people and hire people.

5

Because at 10.60 an hour, with minimal benefits

6

and no retirement, it's not an attractive

7

picture for people to get involved with this

8

business.

9

know, the old let's just cruise around in our

Because again, it is not about, you

10

truck and look for things.

11

such a stereotype that's so archaic, it's almost

12

laughable.

13

But I am having a very difficult time attracting

14

or keeping people because the salaries are

15

dismal.

16

17
18

You know, that's

That's not what the job is about.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So as far as manpower, the

six is sufficient in covering Maui?
MS. ANDERSON:

Obviously not.

It's not sufficient

19

because of just the questions that Mr. Nishiki

20

raised.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So what -- as far as the

22

manpower head count, what it would be to cover

23

seven days a week?

24
25

MS. ANDERSON:

If we could adequately cover -- we can

cover seven days a week now.

Can we adequately
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1

do the job that this community needs?

No.

We

2

would need eight officers to adequately start

3

making impacts on some of these issues that have

4

been raised here today.
We are keeping -- what we are trying to

5

6

do is put a Band-Aid on a gaping wound/ and we

7

have succeed in doing that to the best of our

8

ability.

9

proportionately.

But again/ this community has grown
We know that.

And yet, we

10

have not.

11

community's needs and their expectations and the

12

problems that are created.

13

We need to keep up with the

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

Thank you.

Thank you/ Chair.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes/ thank you.

17

Thank you for being here, Aimee.

18

know how your salaries compare with the salaries

19

of like positions in other counties?

20

MS. ANDERSON:

Well/ Oahu is very closed-fist about

21

giving any type of salary

22

fact/ you can't.

23

salary information from Oahu.

as a matter of

We have never been able to get

We are in line with Big Island and

24

25

Do you

Kauai/ but I am going to give you a caveat to
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1

that.

When Big Island's county actually audited

2

their animal control program, they did an audit

3

for -- of all -- not an audit, but they did a

4

study of all the islands to try to see if they

5

were going to be comparing apples and apples

6

with these other counties.

7

was that -- and I am very proud about this.

8

Now, some people may not think this is somebody

9

to be proud about.

And what they found

We wrote 600 citations last fiscal year.

10
11

Okay.

That is the highest in the state -- and

12

please, you are welcome to check that --

13

including Oahu.

Oahu wrote 420 citations total.

14

Kauai wrote 42.

And the Big Island, at the time

15

wrote, I believe, 28 citations.
So that should at least help you

16

17

understand that we are doing our job, and I

18

think we are doing an exemplary job because our

19

job is law enforcement.

That is my job.

I will tell you this, Charmaine, as far

20

21

as law enforcement -- because again, I am not

22

going to -- I am having a hard time with using

23

the excuse of, "Well, if this is what you people

24

pay your people, that's all you should be

25

getting."

And I think that's a cop-out, and
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will tell you why.
If we are going to be recognized as true

2
3

law enforcement, which we are, a conservation

4

officer with the State starts at $15 an hour.

5

police officer, which I understand we are not

6

fully -- we are not a police officer.

7

the same powers as a police officer by statute.

8

But they make -- I believe they are starting at

9

almost 2800 a month and, of course, full county

10

benefits, including retirement.

A

We have

Okay.

I am simply asking that our salaries be

11
12

in line with similar law enforcement.

13

all I am asking.

14

when we are able to pay our animal control

15

officers the same as a pool guard for the County

16

of Maui, or a file clerk -- and if you check

17

your own personnel department, you will see this

18

is true -- something is wrong with this picture.

19

And I beg of you to please adjust the picture.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That's

But when you are paying --

So there's no statewide

classification for ACOs?

22

MS. ANDERSON:

No, ma'am.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Not in this state.

So each County or each Humane

24

Society or whatever sets their own salaries or

25

whatever?
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1

MS. ANDERSON:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

4
5

Correct.
Do you, across the state,

have the same duties, ACOs?
MS. ANDERSON:

Yes and no.

Again, that varies island

to island.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MS. ANDERSON:

Okay.

As far as our duties are concerned,

8

our officers are on call, go on call actually 24

9

hours, which means our shelter is not open 24

10

hours, but we are on call 24 hours.

11

one-week rotation where we will work a normal

12

shift, days, a normal week -- for instance, I go

13

on call tonight.

14

times tonight to respond to emergency calls and

15

have to report to work at eight o'clock in the

16

morning.

17

Okay.

We take a

So I could be called out three

That's just the way it is.

So we have after-hour on-call, which I

18

do not believe Kauai or Big Island has.

19

believe their shelter -- actually, there's an

20

intake person who will, you know, take in

21

animals at night.

22

emergencies, I can't answer that for Oahu.

Oahu, I

But as far as responding to

As far as DOA removal from our public

23

24

roadways, Oahu does not do that.

25

speak for Kauai or Big Island.

And I cannot
I don't know if
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1

they do that.

And I also don't know if they

2

handle livestock.

3

not clear on what they may handler but I know

4

that they

5

basically take care of everything r 24 hours a

6

day.

So there's some things I am

since we are all-inclusive r we

Thank your Aimee.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

MS. ANDERSON:

Thank you.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Kane?

Ms. Johnson?

With regard to, you know r the

11

scope of your responsibilities/ toor one of the

12

things that Jocelyn had said is that some of

13

your officers have gotten into situations where

14

they really feel r you know, from what she was

15

saying r really! you know r in a predicament.

16

MS. ANDERSON:

Mm-hmm.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because they are being put at

18

risk and the wage is not that great r how do you

19

address that?

20

turnover r or is it that people just -- you know!

21

have they actually had violence committed on

22

them?

23

MS. ANDERSON:

Yes.

I mean! do you have high

The charge that she was talking

24

about -- I am not going to mention the name.

25

was in the paper -- two of my officers were
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
afc: (808)524-2090 'Fax: (808)524-2596

It

BF 03/18/04

35

1

assaulted.

One of them was pushed face down on

2

the ground from behind.

3

behind, and then the other one was threatened

4

with a pickaxe.

5

three felony charges that are pending in court

6

against that person.

She was rushed from

That person, we presently have

Certainly, the batu issue, we see

7

8

Batu -- I don't want to call them batu heads.

9

But we see batu every day, and believe me, those

10

people are not predictable.
What we do have -- we do not have lethal

11
12

force ability.

13

continuum policy.

14

anybody is familiar with that, that means there'

15

are certain uses of force based on the

16

escalation or de-escalation of aggression in

17

that individual.

18

spray.

19

in-house certified for pepper spray.

20

certified, actually nationally certified, in the

21

use of pepper spray.

22

me and in-house certified.

23

expandable baton, it's an in-house training.

And the use of force

We have that.

l

if

We have pepper

We have expandable batons.

They are
I am

My officers are trained by
As far as the

We don't have the training opportunities

24

25

We do have a use of force

that the Police Department has.

A lot of our
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1

formal training opportunities are Mainland

2

based.

3

was $1,000 for education.

4

to cover the plane trip back and forth.

And it's --

I

think our budget last year
That's not even going

But what my officers are stressed to do,

5

6

of course, is use what's called verbal Judo.

7

am a verbal Judo instructor.

8

officers have gone through verbal Judo, and

9

that's basically using the power of talk to get

10

I

Some of my

yourself out of situations.
We heavily rely on the Police Department

11

12

for the protection aspect.

But that's provided

13

that you have some inclination that aggression

14

is about to occur.

15

But sometimes you don't have that forewarning.

16

And so basically, it is an act of faith that you

17

are going to be okay.

18

possible but try to do your job, get out if

19

there's, you know, some aggression that's

20

starting to brew.

We are going to get out.

You be as professional as

And as far as the core of officers I

21
22

have had for long term, why do I have them?

23

Because maybe they are as committed and

24

passionate about what they do as

25

thank God every day for them.

I
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And, you know, the other

2

thing I was going to ask, too, in that regard

3

is, like, I have heard, I know the police force,

4

I guess, uses tasers on occasion.

5

able, if you had the financial wherewithal to

6

purchase those type of devices, or would you not

7

be allowed to use those as part of the scope of

8

your authority?

9

MS. ANDERSON:

Are you also

Well, ultimately, it would be up to

10

the Humane Society to determine if they would

11

allow animal control to use them because since

12

we are not self-insured through the County, we

13

have to carry private insurance, you know, that

14

is a liability on the part of the Humane

15

Society.
Are tasers an option?

16

I suppose they

17

are.

But quite honestly, because of the

18

possibility for -- there is a possibility for

19

fatality with Tasers if somebody, let's say,has

20

a pacemaker.

21

without asking the Police Department to actually

22

go through their formalized training.

23

be very irresponsible

24

something like that without having formalized

25

training, of course.

We would not be using tasers

I

think on our part to use
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In terms of the way other

2

jurisdictions outside of the State of, you know,

3

Hawaii operate I ordinarilYI where would animal

4

control fall in terms of its relationship to a

5

government?

6

it Human Concerns I or where would that

7

ordinarily fall?

8
9

MS. ANDERSON:

Is it usually done by police

l

or is

You bring up a very good question.

For any of you that watch the Animal Planet, you

10

will see Detroit -- or Michigan officers r Miami

11

officers, you will see New York I and they cover

12

the gamut.

13

governmental support.

14

have enforcement powers.

Some are strictly nonprofit with no
TypicallYI those don't

Normally, animal control will fall under

15
16

the citYI will be city employees I County

17

employees I you have state humane officers r

18

particularly in California l

19

will fall under the Police Department.

20

often

21

contract

l

I

they fall under the Police Department.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

MS. ANDERSON:

25

Most

if they are County or nonprofit with a

22

24

and oftentimes they

Okay.

And we used

tOI

but that was many

years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And now you just operate
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1

under a request for proposal or a contract

2

service?

3

MS. ANDERSON:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Correct.
Okay.

The final question I

S h a v e is in regard to some of the animal cruelty
know~

6

reports that I

7

been dealing with this issue and also the

8

vicious dog calls.

9

got so many things to do, how are you really

10
11

you know, you and I have

How, overall, because you've

able to respond to that?
MS. ANDERSON:

Or don't you?

No, you have to.

Not only are you

12

legally obligated to respond to every complaint,

13

even if it's, you know, a chronic complainer

14

that cries wolf 90 percent of the time.

IS

still have to respond.

You

First of all, you have to prioritize.

16
17

There's -- it's interesting when you say

18

prioritize.

19

of control at the same time, how the hell are

20

you going to get to all of them?

21

you manage.

When you have 18 fires burning out

But somehow,

You have to.

For instance, we were out -- a dog that

22

23

fell in an HC&S, an abandoned tank, a

24

IS-foot-deep tank.

2S

respond to it.

Not nice

l

but we have to

This is a Sunday.
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to deal with it.
Basically, you respond to them by

2

3

prioritizing, and certain things are not going

4

to be as much of a priority.

5

that.

6

you have a robbery in progress, you have to

7

respond to that first, you know, as opposed to a

8

traffic violation.

You have to do

I think the police do that.

You know, if

9

But the public expects you to respond to

10

all of it equally, because if it's their problem

11

they are experiencing, it's their crisis,

12

whether it's a dog barking next door.

13

their crisis and they demand the same level of

14

service that this person whose child has just

15

been mauled.

16

responding to the mauled child first.

We have to prioritize by

But they all get addressed.

17

That is

They -- and

18

frankly, our turn-around in calls, if you call

19

in a complaint today, your complaint is going to

20

be responded to the next day.

21

that we incur overtime.

22

off at their normal shift ends.

23

when they get hired.

24

It's part of the game.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that means

My officers don't get
They know that

It's part of the job.

I know this one lady who did
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1

call our office, she was concerned because, you

2

know, she stated that the animal was being

3

burned while it was alive.

4

particular situation, I guess she called the

5

police first because it might have been during a

6

time when you guys were, you know, off duty

7

or -- not off duty, but the Humane Society was

8

closed.

9

police officer told her, you know, there was

And so, in that

And then the officer, I guess the

10

nothing really that they could do except refer

11

it, you know, to you.

12

upset because she felt, "Well, what can I do to

13

prevent this kind of thing from happening?1I

And I gather she was

So, you know, how do you address issues

14
15

like that?

16

other side of town, you have got to come and

17

respond.

18

least in this particular case, because if the

19

animal was already dead by the time you get

20

there, what does a person do?

21

MS. ANDERSON:

Because I realize, if you are the

You know, there's no corroboration, at

Well, you brought up a good point.

If

22

evidence is destroyed because the, you know,

23

response time has been delayed due to, you know,

24

geographical separation or something, that's --

25

that's reality.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofe:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

42

1

Not all cruelty cases that occur are

2

going to be charged or convicted because the

3

evidence is either destroyed or has not been

4

properly recovered or maintained.

5

it's -- doing a cruelty case is very similar

6

without -- is somewhat similar to a murder case.

7

You have to secure the scene.

8

maintain, you know

9

have to maintain your chain of evidence.

10

You know,

You have to

impound the evidence.

You

You

have to do a thorough investigation.

11

Not all of those cases is that going to

12

be possible.

13

officers, you are not going to have that

14

possibility where you are going to be on scene

15

immediately when the crime is occurring.

16

know that.

17

different.

18

And even if we have eight

We

The police, you know, are no

So you just do the best you can.

Do

19

your investigation.

20

evidence that a crime has been committed, you

21

refer to the prosecutors, get the thing

22

prosecuted.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

If there's, you know,

And if they provide videotape

24

evidence that this has occurred, can you use

25

that as evidence in prosecuting?
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MS. ANDERSON:

Yes.

Ultimately, it will be up to the

2

prosecutor.

3

could try to suppress that evidence or question

4

that evidence.

5

admissible evidence in a court of law.

6

Certainly, the defense attorney

But yes, that would be

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And my final question

7

is you don't have offices or officers on Molokai

8

and Lanai?

9

MS. ANDERSON:

No, Molokai and Lanai are dog wardens

10

by definition, and they fall under -- they are

11

strictly County of Maui employees.

12

Molokai is if not full-time nearly full-time.

13

The one in Lanai is half time.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

MS. ANDERSON:

16

Okay.

The one in

Thank you.

But they do not -- they

preface

I am sorry.

I mlist

I have to interrupt you.

We train them because, again, there's no

17

18

place for them to train.

So we volunteer to

19

train them.

20

them, and we don't expect to be.

21

something we want to do for them because it

22

benefits their island.

We are not compensated to train
That's

So they come and train under us for a

23
24

week, and then -- which is scary, because that's

25

not nearly enough time.

But it's all we get
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1

with them, to we give them as much as we can

2

because they also have to be -- not to bring up

3

a sensitive subject -- they have to be competent

4

in euthanasia before they start doing it, and a

5

week is -- but that's all they give us.

6

send them back and support them in any way we

7

can.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Just with what you said,

what -- do you know what the wage is for the dog

10

wardens?

11

MS. ANDERSON:

I do not know what the wage is for the

12

dog wardens.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

So we

Okay.

Mr. Chair, I would be

interested to know that information.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It is in the budget.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Ms. Anderson.

19

20

MS. ANDERSON:

Hi, Danny.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

The 600 citations that's issued

22

out, like, last -- last year, these are all

23

warning only?

24

MS. ANDERSON:

No, these are monetary --

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

These are fines?
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1

MS. ANDERSON:

Correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

go where?

4

MS. ANDERSON:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And the moneys from the fines

State coffers.
So just like our Police

6

Department! where we don't benefit from the

7

fines --

8

MS. ANDERSON:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Correct.

That's correct.

Okay.

And in your planning

10

process! a strategic plan for the Humane

11

Society! in the next five years your strategic

12

plans will include additional positions, or are

13

you already including it now in your opinion

14

budget?

15

MS. ANDERSON:

Well! it has not been included --

16

additional positions have not been included in

17

this 2005 budget.

18

our original budget was trying to get an officer

19

a decent working wage to address the officers we

20

have so we can at least keep six at all times.

21

That's the goal immediately.

22

23
24
25

Frankly, what is included in

As far as strategic plan! yes.

Increase

in our enforcement branch is included, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And that enforcement, in order

to cover Maui island
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1

MS. ANDERSON:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

That is correct.
and the number of calls and

complaints you get, you have six officers now?

4

MS. ANDERSON:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yes.
What would you need to be able

6

to have a full complement of officers to

7

actually respond?

8
9

MS. ANDERSON:

Eight.

At the present population,

eight.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Mr. Molina?

12

question?

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki, another

Yeah, yeah, just a question.

I think mailmen have experienced,

14
15

mailmen and mail ladies have experienced

16

other people in this society that have

17

experience probably would be people that deliver

18

the papers with this concern.

19

guess, I did at one time because in politicking,

20

I used to go house to house.

21

some of you have had that experience also.

22

the

And then, I

And I am sure that

But I remember, in going house to house,

23

approaching homes, and then a bark and a growl!

24

and then I went outta here.

25

Okay.

This is a concern that I have, Aimee,
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1

and tell us this if you know.

2

vicious dogs and people raising them or keeping

3

them, is that something that we should be

4

concerned aboutr and is there an answer before

5

something happens here in Maui County like it

6

did on Kauai?

7

MS. ANDERSON:

That is an excellent question, Wayne.
Yes r we should be concerned because r

8
9

The amount of

quite honestly, we know firsthand there are a

10

lot of dog -- and I want to say dog owners that

11

have dogs that are aggressive.

12

want to do is stereotype breeds.

13

other states and counties where they will

14

actually pinpoint a particular breed as the

15

culprit.

What we don't
We see that In

It is not the breed, it is the owner.
Is there an answer to that?

16

Certainly,

17

there's an answer to that, as far as reviewing

18

our dangerous dog laws, increasing the penalties

19

or the severity of the law when it comes to

20

dangerous dogs.
But let me tell you this.

21

If someone

22

has a dangerous dog, aggressive dog, if that dog

23

is properly confined

24

kennel in the back yard that's locked.

25

The owner is responsible.

let's say that dog has a

That dog, no matter
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1

what its disposition, is never going to be a

2

danger to our community if that owner is

3

responsible.

4

that are causing the problem.

5

how they are raising those dogs, training those

6

dogs, socializing those dogs, and confining or

7

not confining those dogs.

Irresponsible in

And the other thing we need to do is

8
9

It's owners that are irresponsible

make sure that the public is reporting all

10

aggressive acts by dogs.

Because too often we

11

will see -- we had an Akita that mauled a kid's

12

face nearly off three years ago, and we only

13

found out after that case occurred, someone came

14

forward and says, III feel terrible.

15

was bit by that dog and we never reported it

16

because we didn't want to make trouble.

17

is a deadly combination.

My child

II

That

18

So there are several things we can do.

19

And not just legislatively but just as a moral

20

obligation to the safety of your community.

21

do believe that the hospital should mandatorily

22

report -- they do mandatorily report dog bites

23

to the police.
But the problem is is if the police

24

25

don't contact us directly, we are not -- you
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.

1

know, in their computer system, we will get that

2

police report up to two weeks later, and now we

3

are doing the follow-up.

4

police will list it as a civil matter, and they

5

forward the report to us.

6

later, so now we are doing the investigation.

7

Well, that's two weeks that that dog could have

8

potentially killed somebody.

Okay.

Because the

We get it two weeks

So there's -- there's -- you were

9

10

talking about coordination.

11

things that can be better coordinated, perhaps,

12

with the police.

13

at that.

14

you know, to sit down and work them out in a

15

schematic would be

16

that.

17

be willing to do that for me.

18
19

There's certain

Legislatively, we need to look

There's several things we can do to,

you know, I am all for

And I would work with anybody that would

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

And then -- and then,

finally, you know, we don't control salaries.

20

MS. ANDERSON:

I understand.

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

And you made that plea to

22

us, or said, "Well, I am having a hard time."

23

But I guess the question is back to you.

24

haven't you initiated more pay for your people?

25

MS. ANDERSON:

Because the moneys that we receive for
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anim al con trol! whic h incl udes sala ries for the

2

anim al con trol offi cers ! come from you.
Okay .

3

VICE -CHA IR NISH IKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pon tani lla.

do go out on call s! do you get paid over time ?
Yes, sir, we do.

8

MS. ANDERSON:

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
MS. ANDERSON:

11

COUNCI LMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

MS. ANDERSON:

13

COUNCI LMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15
16
17
18

You do?

Yes.

10

14

Than k you, Cha ir.

My fina l ques tion to Aime e is when you

6
7

Than k you.

Okay .

Than k you.

Than k you.
Oh, one more .

How much

over time you guys expe nded so far?
I don 't have the over time figu res! the

MS. ANDERSON:

sala ry figu res.

Wha t I can tell you is that

othe r than norm al over time , when you are runn ing
late on a call , we resp onde d to 85 emer genc y

20

call s last year for -- this was afte r-ho urs
serv ice call s! and that does enta il! of cour se,

21

over time .

22

sala ries , that wou ld be Joce lyn' s area of

23

exp erti se.

19

As far as the actu al expe ndit ure of

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

MS. ANDERSON:

Okay .

Than k you.

Than k you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Anyone else has a question?

Okay.

Thank you very much.

3

MS. ANDERSON:

Thank you very much.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Stacey Moniz.

5

MS. MONIZ:

Good morning.

Thank you for allowing me

6

the chance to testify as well.

My name is

7

Stacey Moniz, and I am the Executive Director

8

for Women Helping Women.
The first thing I wanted to say was that

9
10

I was really happy to see in the Mayor's budget

11

some additional funding for Department of

12

Housing and Human Concerns because Women Helping

13

Women historically has gotten a grant from the

14

GRC, the Community Partnership Grants.

15

kind of hoping it would go back to last year's

16

1.8 or 9 million, but I guess that's a good

17

start, and I wanted to kind of encourage that.

I was

And the reason I am here today, and I

18
19

will be at a lot of the County budget hearings,

20

is because of Women Helping Women's experience

21

last year of losing a huge chunk of County

22

funding, I have made a really challenging

23

decision to ask for a line item of $140,000.

24

spent this morning passing out letters to you

25

I have a couple more that I am going to ask
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1

someone to hand out when I am done -- kind of

2

explaining why we are asking for a line item.
I am also turning in a Community

3
4

Partnership Grant application, but I have been

5

told that the cap is $70,000 for Human Services,

6

and like I said, I need $140,000.

7

submit my Community Partnership Grant

8

application asking for 140,000 and explaining

9

why I need that much, and I am happy to talk a

10

I am going to

little bit about that { too.
That's what we need, and so I was

11
12

kind -- I felt forced to apply for a line item.

13

I don't know how exactly to get a line item.

14

I'm -- this is my first time doing this.

15

approaching

16

gave a letter to Alice Lee and Wendy, our grant

17

administrator.

18

public hearings and meet with you individually.

19

Some of you I have already met with.

sending you all letters.

I'm
I also

And then I am going show up at

A little history, the County used to be

20
21

a significant funder for Women Helping Women,

22

with over 30 percent of our funding coming from

23

county grants.

24

which was only 5 percent of our entire budget,

25

so what that says is two things.

Last year, we received 56,000,

One is our
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1

county funding has gone down pretty

2

dramatically.

3

to you, over the past six or seven years talk --

4

showing how our funding has gone down.

I included a graph, in my letter

5

And the other dynamic is that we have

6

applied for other funding to -- so our budget

7

has increased through other funding sources, but

8

our basic core service, which is our shelter and

9

hotline! we need County support for, and that's

10

gone down over the years.
The one piece that might be specifically

11
12

interesting to you, Riki, is that I want to

13

include as part of this $140,000 bringing our

14

Lanai staff up td a full-time position.

15

a half-time staff on Lanai, and over the past

16

two years, she's worked with over 30 women on

17

the island of Lanai alone, and these are the

18

women and their children.

19

significant part of the Lanai community.

We have

So that's a

And so I am really going to seek your

20
21

support in that as well as everyone's support.

22

But just to give you an idea that that's one of

23

the things that this $140,000 would be paying

24

for.

25

MR. TAGUCHI:

Three minutes.
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And basically, that's it.

definitely able to answer questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Thank you, Ms. Moniz.
Questions for Ms. Moniz this morning,

4
5

And I am

Members?

Mrs. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Stacey, I know that one of

7

the problems we are experiencing is, of course,

8

the increase in drug use here in our community.

9

And I just, by reading the papers, it looks to

10

me as if the numbers [ particularly of women who

11

are drug users

12

one of the reasons why you are, you know, asking

13

for more money, or is it just because our

14

amounts have been dwindling, that you want to

15

keep a level budget?

16

MS. MONIZ:

l

is on the rise.

Is that also

If you could explain.

WeIll I think there's two good questions

17

in your question.

We certainly are seeing

18

growing numbers of women accessing our services

19

who are substance abusing as well as we just

20

need -- we used to get, kind of, $100,000, I

21

would say was a rough number for a while, and

22

and we need that much money.

23

the second part of your question, which is yes,

24

we just need that much money.

So that's kind of

We would like to address the needs of

25
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1

our clients that have substance abuse issues,

2

and our long-term plan, our strategic plan for

3

the next five years, is to expand our services

4

to address the substance abuse need.

5

currently nowhere women can go and get safe

6

shelter and substance abuse treatment.

7

to say they were two separate issues, and now we

8

are seeing we -- we really can't separate them.

There's

We used

When I talk story with other nonprofits,

9

10

such as the Humane Society -- we were just

11

talking this morning -- about how many of our

12

cases cross over! violent people are violent to

13

their family, they are violent to their animals.

14

The cases where animal officers -- animal

15

control officers are being attacked are the

16

same -- these are the same people who are

17

battering their families.

18

there.

So ice is prevalent

We see that in -- when I talk with Aloha

19
20

House or the homeless shelter, substance abuse

21

is permeating everywhere, and it does increase

22

the violence, and it does increase the needs of

23

the women who come to our program.

24

question.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Mateo?

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

No.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Nishiki.

Yeah, Stacey, just because

5

somebody uses drugs doesn't mean that they are

6

bad.

7

battered, there cannot be any excuse, even if

8

you -- if we in society think that they are bad,

9

that they should not be protected.

But when somebody uses drugs and they are

And women

10

normally get beat up by men.

11

of a weaker gender.

12

their relationships despite that they get beat

13

up because they have nobody else to go to.

14

Women need help.

Women sometimes stay in

My question is this.

15

Women normally are

You bring up the

16

ice epidemic.

We bring up statistics, and you

17

mention the shelter and the hotline.

18

idea of, number one, people that you have had to

19

turn away so therefore they may have to go back

20

and get beat up again.

Give us an

Number two/ the hotline calls and what

21

22

is the current situation, and is it perhaps

23

causing you some concern in our community

24

because probably none of us experience what you

25

experience firsthand.
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I just want to know, just because, you

1

2

know, I -- I don't think if there is a need and

3

if the County has some resources that we can

4

make any more excuses if it has truly reached an

5

epidemic stage for these innocent women that are

6

being exposed to a beating.

7

each other up verbally in this Council, but I

8

don't think that when somebody is getting beat

9

up, through words but also with physical,

I mean, we beat

10

that -- and then, of course, I guess, you know,

11

I -- I -- I won't say who it is, but I have seen

12

this firsthand with relationships, and -- and I

13

am concerned because if they have children, then

14

the children witness this t and then you know, it

15

goes on to more problems.
Butt your turn to speak.

16

17

MS. MONIZ:

Well, I really appreciate everything that

18

you had to say because that is exactly, I

19

believe, the same thing.

20

access our services who are substance abusing,

21

and there's nothing wrong with them.

22

deserve our services.

23

adapt our program to reflect that growing need.

24

We used to say if you are using

25

substances r you cannot use our shelter because

We see women who

And we are trying to
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1

we can't have you in the shelter.

Now, we are

2

trying to encourage -- and we would almost force

3

women to lie to us.

4

at out shelter, you have to tell us you are not

5

using substances."

6

encourage people to be honest and then try to

7

access them the resources to address their

8

substance abuse issue.

"If you are going to stay

Now we are trying to

9

At some point, like I said, in the next

10

five years, we would like to be able to address

11

that in our own shelter.

12

that, so we hook them up with other programs

13

that provide substance abuse.

Today, we don't do

To answer your question about how many

14
15

women we have to turn away, we have in the State

16

of Hawaii a no-turnaway policy in domestic

17

violence shelters.

18

shelters on the Mainland, if you lived in, say,

19

California, there are adjoining counties where

20

there are shelters that provide the same

21

domestic violence shelter, and maybe this

22

shelter is full.

23

shell in an adjoining county, and that's a

24

reasonable thing to do.

And what that means is other

Then we would send you to a

Here in the State of Hawaii, if I say

25
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1

you can't -- we are full, it's not like you can

2

just drive on over or catch a bus to the next

3

shelter.

4

have, as a State, said we are not going to turn

5

anyone away.

There is no other shelter.

So we

And what that means is we've had a very

6

7

full

8

have 6 bedrooms, and -- but over the holidays

9

and in the last couple of months, we have been

house~

Our shelter building is huge.

We

averaging 40 people in the

10

having at least

11

shelter, women and children.

12

bodies in one shelter, and everyone is in

13

crisis.

That's a lot of

14

So we don't turn people away.

15

have taken our children's room and turned it

16

into another bedroom.

17

conference room and turned that into another

18

bedroom to address the needs of the women.

19

sometimes have three or four single women with

20

no children staying in one room.

21

accommodate.

22

the women that we work with is that they know,

23

when the new woman is coming in, that they want

24

her to feel comfortable, and we can be full, and

25

they will rearrange themselves to give a woman

We have taken a

We

So we -- we

And the thing that's nice about
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1

her own room for the first couple of nights that

2

she's at the shelter.
So that's -- so we have a no-turnaway

3

4

policy.

We will just kind of fill people up.

5

We have a nice carpet in the living room, and

6

people can sleep on the floor if we have to.
As far as our hotline calls go, we have

7

8

a 24-hour hotline, and we have seen a huge

9

increase in the numbers of calls that have been

10

happening.

And it's hard to say exactly what it

11

is.

12

the ice epidemic.

13

crisis, record numbers of crisis calls.

14

month of December, we had over 1,000 calls to

15

our hotline.

Maybe it's community education.

Maybe it's

We have people calling in
In the

And one of the things -- one of our new

16

17

things, we are trying to let people know that

18

they can call collect on the hotline.

19

if you are in crisis and you get to a pay phone,

20

who's got -- it costs 50 cents to make a phone

21

call now.

22

call us collect.

Because

So we are trying to let people know
And that might be helping.

You know, so it is -- it is a huge

23
24

growing number.

I also appreciate that you call

25

it an epidemic.

In fact, the Centers for
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1

Disease Control have labeled domestic violence

2

as an epidemic in our country and are funding a

3

study on the Big Island right now.

4

moneys to do a culturally relevant study in

5

Hawaii.

They offered

And then finally, I wanted to say that

6
7

when you say that you have firsthand experience

8

and you don't want to mention people's names, I

9

have not met anyone who doesn't know somebody

10

who's been affected by domestic violence.

11

have made by rounds through County Council

12

Members and their staff members, I am

13

continually not surprised

14

people who will saYI "Oh, yeah, I know people

15

who have suffered with domestic violence, either

16

myself, or my family member, or my mother, my

17

daughter

18

Island."

19

been affected by domestic violence.

I

l

As I

but I am grateful for

my sister, my cousin on the Big
You know, everyone knows someone who's

And absolutely, the children are

20

21

affected.

And we try to work with the kids as

22

well at the shelter and in the community.

23

appreciate that you say that because it's

24

it's not an isolated thing.

25

have talked to in regards to County Council has

Almost everyone I
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1

had personal experience with domestic violence.

2

So I appreciate it that comment as well.

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

And, finally,

4

Mr. Chairman, if I may, this part is most

5

important to me.

6

and you don't give them any feeling of, "You

7

know what, I am finally going to get out.

8

not going to take any more of these beatings.

9

am going to call."

If people are calling, okay,

I am
I

They call.

Now, this is the part that I am worried

10
11

about.

12

going to help you, but you" -- you told us, oh,

13

zero, we don't turn away anybody.

14

person comes and then hits you and then feels

15

like if you in some way tell them,

16

but, you know -- yeah, we are going to see you,"

17

and if that is your zero tolerance, and then

18

aft~r

19

longer."

20

what?

21

taking it from you.

22

this and I really get no help."

23

They call, and you say, "Yeah, we are

But if that

"Oh, sorry,

that, "Oh, you cannot stay here any
So then they go,

"Oh, wow, you know

I have had the guts now to say I ain't
Okay.

Now, I come and I do

This is what I worry about.

Is that now

24

a circumstance that actually happens whereby now

25

people are going to go,

"I ain't going to call.
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1

I'm going to go back to myoId habit of getting

2

beat up again/ because I have really not

3

received help from whom I entrusted would

4

provide this safety for me and my child."

5

That's what I am saying.

6

MS. MONIZ:

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Is that

That
Is that there, and is it because

8

you really don't have that ability to help?

9

Let's be honest about it.

10

MS. MONIZ:

What I think --

II

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I don't want this to be a

12

glorified thing and therefore/ you know, it is

13

not the real story for people.

14

MS. MONIZ:

Well, our goal is we try to recognize

15

that the women who come to us, they know what is

16

best for themselves, and that they just need,

17

really, a place to stop all of the intense fear,

18

to think about what they want to do.

19

Leaving an abusive relationship is a

20

process, and it can take a woman one time to

21

leave, but more often than not, it takes several

22

times of leaving and going back to the

23

relationship.
There are a lot of things that compel

24

25

battered women to go back to their batterer,
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1

things like financial dependency, love,

2

children, investments of time and energy.

3

mean, there's a lot of reasons that women would

4

go back to their batterer.

I

It wouldn't necessarily reflect on our

5

6

program that we have either failed or done a

7

good job, because -- and that's what we try to

8

say.

9

want to prepare you to be safer when you do go

10

We understand that you may go back, and we

back.
Battered women are forever hopeful that

11
12

their partners are going to change because,

13

now -- "I never left before, but now I left, so

14

he knows I mean it.

15

with this."

16

to be different.

17

relationship, if she goes back, a different

18

person.

19

I am not going to put up

So each time she leaves, it's going
She comes back to the

Our goal is not to get her to leave the

20

relationship or to stay.

Our goal really is to

21

provide her first with safety, and with

22

information that's going to keep her safe

23

whatever her choice is.

24

leaving is much more dangerous than staying.

25

·Because he said, "If I can't have you, nobody

Because for some women,
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1

will.

I will kill you, I will kill the kids,

2

and I will kill myself."

3

And we see that.

That's happened here

4

on Maui.

When a woman left her husband and took

5

the kids, he came home and stabbed her in her

6

shower and killed her, right here on our own

7

island.

8

On Molokai, we had a guy kill his wife,

9

dress her up in his favorite dress, lay down in

10

the bed next to her, and kill himself.
This happens in Maui, I mean, "If I

11
12

can't have you, nobody will."

So women here

13

I better not leave, because it's a real threat.

14

It is about power and control.

15

control, I am going to take it to the next

16

level, and maybe have to kill somebody.

17

that's what we are trying to prevent.

If I am losing

We want women to be safer.

18

So

What are the

19

tools that you might need to be safer?

Maybe

20

it's the shelter.

21

Maybe it's a restraining order.

22

to get off this island.

23

women, that's a reality.

24

there to support what she says she needs to do.

Maybe it's a support group.
Maybe you need

You know, for some
I

mean, and we're

We have a lot of women who, because of

25
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1

the drug industry, are very much in danger of if

2

they get a restraining order, it's going to make

3

it worse because now the police are involved.

4

So we have to let her determine what is going to

5

be most helpful for her.

6

go back to her batterer, it's not because our

7

program has failed.

8

So ...

9

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

So if she chooses to

Do you know what I mean?

Okay.

You know, you brought

10

up -- and this is my last question -- you

11

brought up to Riki, and I don't know why you did

12

it, but maybe it is a concern that you have.

13

Lanai, you brought up, you know, we have had 35

14

cases over there.

15

MS. MONIZ:

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I heard 30-some.

30, yeah.
Is there an epidemic there and

17

is there a shelter on Lanai?

18

people -- and I don't know.

19

know better than me about should there be

20

something on Lanai, or is there something on

21

Lanai?

22

MS. MONIZ:

On

Because a lot of
You know -- you

I am really glad you asked that question.

23

Of course, I have addressed it to Riki because

24

he is from Lanai.

25

that it's epidemic, but it's not different from

And because I would say yes,
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Domestic violence is epidemic.
I point out that it's over 30 cases --

2

I

3

think it's 32 cases -- on Lanai in the last two

4

years, because to me that is a significant

5

number of people.

6

on Lanai, we can get -- we can make huge impacts

7

there, and that's what's exciting.

8

32 women are accessing our services there, we

9

are doing something right on that island, and I

10

And because of the population

Because if

want to encourage that some more.
About a shelter! no, there's no shelter

11

12

right now.

We -- Lanai is so small that if we

13

designated a safe house! that would work one

14

time because it's too small.
What we are looking at -- and I am

15

16

really glad you raised this! because one of my

17

personal goals is to see a shelter built on

18

Lanai or made on Lanai that's not confidential

19

but that's very public.

20

throughout the country! if it's not possible to

21

have a safe, confidential hidden shelter, what

22

they do is make it highly public! maybe build it

23

next to the Police Department, maybe have a

24

police substation next door! make it the

25

community's responsibility to keep battered

Other jurisdictions
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1

women and their children safe.

We know that

2

whoever is here needs our support

3

as a community, going to support that.

I

So that's one of the goals.

4

and we are

l

I don't

5

know -- that's not this year, unless you know

6

somebody that's got a building next to the new

7

police station, but that's a goal, is to make,

8

rather than a confidential safe shelter, make a

9

very public shelter where we can keep women

10
11

safe, and their children.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, thank you.

I know we

17

got into a lot of questions about your program

18

itself.

19

your program.

20

of $70,000.

I want to get back to the finances of
You stated that the GRC has a cap
That's correct?

21

MS. MONIZ:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

Yeah, for social services.
Do you

right.

Do you know where in the -- I know we

24

had a list.

But do you know where you placed in

25

the evaluation or the rating of your project?
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What number were you?
MS. MONIZ:

I think it was like 12 or 15.

In

3

previous years, we were like top three or four.

4

Last year, for some reason, we dropped down

5

in -- it's weird because I submitted the same

6

almost the same application.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

did you

Were you ever

8

have, like, an exit interview, like telling you

9

where in your grant was deficient?

Was there

10

any follow-up explaining your rating and how you

11

were evaluated?

12

MS. MONIZ:

Yeah, we kind of had some of that, but

13

I -- it wasn't really specific to my

14

application, the feedback that I got.

15

meet with Wendy and Veranio from the Grants

16

Management Division, and they have helped me get

17

a better understanding of our -- there's this

18

thing called a program logic matrix

19

have to put our program into blocks.

20

think that's where we may have scored low

21

because like I said, our measurable outcomes are

22

different because if a woman decides to go back

23

to her batterer, that doesn't mean our program

24

has failed.

25

did that.

where we
And I

So we needed to re-look at how we
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My guess is that that's where we scored

1
2

low.

Though, the year before, we turned the

3

same model in and scored high.

4

really say.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So it's hard to

Do you know or recall what

6

amounts of money you had received from the GRC

7

in the past?

8
9
10
11
12
13

MS. MONIZ:

Yeah, in fact, I can -- lucky I still

have this.

I gave this to you

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, I am sorry.

I haven't

read what you dropped off.
MS. MONIZ:

No, I just dropped it off this morning.

I really couldn't expect you to -So in 1997-98, we received $221,000 --

14

15

221,573.

16

In 1999-2000, we got 139,330.

17

year that the needs assessment came out, where

18

domestic violence was ranked number three, and

19

so we got a little bump up.

20

year that we had an up in the money that we were

21

awarded.

22

we got 99,000.

23

year, 56,000.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

The next year,

'98-99, we got 126,800.
And that was the

That was the only

Then in 2001, we got 120,000.
'02-03

1

we got 80,000.

And last

So it's gone down.
And how has this impacted

your program?
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Well, you know, that's kind of a -- in my

2

opinion, it's an unfair question.

3

impact our program.

4

the services.

5
6
7
8

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It didn't

We have to keep providing

But you had to get funds

elsewhere, though?
MS. MONIZ:

Yes, we did.

And that's -- and then I

submitted this
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
MS. MONIZ:

Okay.

-- which is our trust and foundations,

11

But they can't be depended on either for funding

12

because they are dependent on the stock market,

13

and they have had losses! and blah, blah, blah.

14

But our trust and foundations have gone up every

15

year, and that's a very unreliable source of

16

funds for us and not sustainable.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And these funds that you got

18

from 1997( that you read to us, this was from

19

the GRC?

20

MS. MONIZ:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MS. MONIZ:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

25

Yes.

I think it's GRC, back then.
Or social services grants?

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you very much

for the information.
MS. MONIZ:

Sure.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll?

Ms. Johnson?

Thank you very much, Stacey, for being here.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Question, Chair.

Mr. Molina.
Thank you.

Good morning, Stacey.

6

7

MS. MONIZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

MS. MONIZ:

10

Mr. Kane?

Good morning.
Sorry.

One more time.

Sure.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you for sharing some

11

very eye-opening, compelling information with

12

us.

13

was the increasing amount of clients you are

14

having, people calling on hotlines.

What I found especially of concern of mine

Now, for your clients, you not only

15
16

provide the shelter, but we are talking three

17

meals a day.

18

MS. MONIZ:

Mm-hmm.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Is there generally a limit as

20

to how many days they can stay or is it you let

21

them stay as long as -- as long as it takes?

22

MS. MONIZ:

Our limit is 90 days.

But we are able to

23

extend that if we need to.

If, say, she's got

24

housing pending or -- but generally, the average

25

stay is only about two to three weeks.
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1

we have some women who come stay one night.

2

have had women come stay two hours, get really

3

freaked out about having left and try to get

4

home before their husband knows they had left.

5

And then we have women who stay 90 days.

6

have had a couple of clients need four or five

7

months because they were really waiting for,

8

maybe, a HUD voucher or housing, and we all know

9

housing is hard to find.

10

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So in those cases, we

This not only includes food r

you also provide basic toiletry items as well?
MS. MONIZ:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

MS. MONIZ:

17

We

can extend it if we need to.

13

16

We

Absolutely.
Women and children?

Most of our clients come with nothing, so

we provide everything.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I see.

Yeah, I am asking you

18

this because I am trying to correlate the need

19

for your budget request, and it seems like you

20

have an increase in the amount of clients you

21

can see.

22

budget requests.

I understand your reasons for your

23

MS. MONIZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

Yeah.
Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any other questions?

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chair.

Chair.
Sorry.

One other question, Stacey.

5

When you

6

write your grants and you have a format that you

7

need to follow as far as what is expected, and

8

in that format, I am assuming that you have to

9

. have performance measures in there?

10

MS. MONIZ:

Absolutely, yeah.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And does someone help you

12

write a performance measure or performance

13

measures for your association.

14

MS. MONIZ:

In fact, we recently used the County

15

Grants Management team to help us work on

16

refining that.

17

objectives.

18

towards measurable outcomes, which is what is

19

the impact for the women and what is the impact

20

on our community.

21

technical support from the County.

22

We have always done goals and

More and more funders are moving

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So we have used that

So you are learning that in

23

writing your performance measures that they have

24

to really reflect what it is you're doing

25

you are trying to do, so that when someone goes
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back to their domicile, that that's not failure.
MS. MONIZ:

Right.

And how do you sell that or pitch

3

it to the funder so that they don't look at

4

women returning to their batterer as a failure

5

on our part.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7
8
9

Yes.

And I guess you have to

stress the counseling and the enabling part.
MS. MONIZ:

And the skill building and the safety

planning and resource building.

So many of our

10

clients are so isolated, they don't know about

11

the services that are available.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Stacey.

14

MS. MONIZ:

Sure.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
Stacey, comparing this

17

past year, as far as your TROs, 203, is there

18

an increase in the TROs that you have worked

19

with?

20

MS. MONIZ:

There's been a huge increase in

21

restraining orders.

22

over 450 restraining orders.

23

Women is only one of two agencies of -- so there

24

are two agencies on the island that are doing

25

restraining orders.

I think last year, we did
And Women Helping

So that's a lot of
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restraining orders.
And to kind of tie that back into the

2

3

ice epidemic, we often see family members of ice

4

addicts getting restraining orders because the

5

addict is getting escalating in violence.

6

may not always be the intimate partner violence,

7

but it is still family violence and it still

8

posts a huge threat to our community.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

So it

One more

question.
As far as children's program, you know,

11
12

you mentioned about sometimes, you know, both

13

mom and children are housed by you.

14

of programs do you have in regards to the

15

children?

16

MS. MONIZ:

That's a great question.

What kind

At our shelter,

17

we have a children's program specifically set up

18

with staff, and we have a group spend --

19

depending on the kids' age, for some of the kids

20

that come to the shelter, it's the first time

21

they have actually talked to their mom about how

22

they feel.

23

with the moms to kind of prepare them to talk to

24

each other about the domestic violence because

25

for a lot of families, the mom just kind of

So we work with the kids and we work
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1

says, "It's going to be okay.

Let me take care

2

of it."

3

that's their dad or their stepdad, and they --

4

it's hard to open those lines of communication.

And it's scary to talk to them because

5

So that's one of the big goals that we

6

have is to get moms and their children to talk

7

about that because the kids are often her

8

biggest lines to safety.

9

if she says to the kids, "It's okay for you to

Should they go back,

10

call the police if this happens again," oh,

11

that's going to change the entire dynamic of the

12

family_
We also teach kids how to call 911, and

13
14

what would you say when you call 911.

15

then we have groups where kids can talk to other

16

kids who have been exposed to domestic violence

17

to kind of break their isolation because the

18

entire family is very isolated by domestic

19

violence.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So -- and

So once they leave the

21

shelter, do you lead them to any other

22

organization in regards to continuing their

23

so-called rehab?

24
25

MS. MONIZ:

Absolutely.

We work with almost every

nonprofit social service on this island.
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1

the women who max out at our shelter at 90 days,

2

or even -- they want to move on, probably one of

3

the biggest places we send women is to Hale A Ke

4

ala, the Resource Center, they transition from

5

our shelter to their shelter, where they do a

6

much more rigorous life-skill building.

7

for women who don't go back to their abuser.

8

Our biggest resource is the Resource Center.

This is

And then we try to get them into

9

10

affordable housing, or we try to arrange with

11

churches and other social service agencies for

12

deposits.

13

out on their own as well as emotional.

14

try to provide the support and the resources,

15

contacts with other agencies.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

Thank you.

Are there any other questions for

Ms. Moniz, please?
Just one quick one.

20
21

So we

Thank you, Chair.

17
18

And it is a big financial move to go

You deal with

battered men, too?
MS. MONIZ:

Yeah.

Not at our shelter.

We've--

23

we've had battered men come and access our

24

services primarily through the hotline or the

25

restraining order program, very small number.
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1

And generally, they have access to resources

2

that, like, our women don't have.

3

are doing a safety plan with the man, he can

4

usually afford, maybe, a hotel or has a friend

5

or some other resources; whereas, our women tend

6

to not even have an income.

7

primary difference, I think.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MS. MONIZ:

10
11

you do.

So that's the

But it does exist?

Oh , sure.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Like if we

Oh, yeah.

Thank you, Stacey, very much for what
Okay.

Next we will have Terryl Vencl.

Terryl is the last to sign up for

12
13

testimony this morning.

14

please make yourself known, come forward to the

15

desk, and Camille will be happy to assist you.

16

MS. VENCL:

If there's anyone else,

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council

17

Members.

18

Director of the Maui Visitors Bureau.

My name is Terryl Vencl.

I am the

19

Today I am just reporting back on a

20

couple of things you asked about yesterday.

21

have brought for staff today a report from the

22

Department of Economic Development and Tourism

23

that deals with inventory on all of our islands r

24

Maui, Molokai, and Lanai.

25

give you copies of that.

I

I believe they will
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It discusses a particular question that

1
2

was asked of me yesterday, I believe, by

3

Mr. Nishiki, was what are the number of units

4

and timeshare in Maui County.

5

1349.

The number is

I would also recommend that you -- I

6
7

would be happy to leave this if you want this

8

whole report, because it is a State report, but

9

it really does have some good information in

10

here about future things that are on line for

11

development, and it also -- the information I

12

have left you also gives you a website where you

13

can actually go and look at this and pull down

14

what pieces of it that you would like to have if

15

you would like to do that.

16

report back on that.

So I wanted to

Another thing I talked to you about

17

18

yesterday was a DB EDT report, a satisfaction

19

report.

20

what you are looking for.

21

statewide, very general report, and it basically

22

talks about what do visitors like to do the most

23

when they are here.

First of all, it's a

However, I did talk with the folks who

24
25

When I went and reviewed that, it's not

are compiling our website survey that I
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1

suggested I would bring in to

2

them to be sure and have that for me next week.

3

So I will bring that in as quickly as it's

4

available.
That's it, Mr. Chairman.

5

6

7

10

Just wanted to

report back.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that quick response.
Any questions for Terryl on her comments

8

9

and I asked

YOUr

this morning?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki?
Yeah, you know r I just felt a

11

little bit empty yesterday because -- and not a

12

reflection of you, okay.

13

really hard when you say that -- when I asked

14

you give me the negatives of what the visitors

15

say, you never mentioned the airport wait over

16

there that people have to go through.

17

that was nothing.

But I just find it

I mean,

You mentioned only traffic.

And that's why I just kind of want to

18

19

ask you one more time, because the previous

20

director gave a whole sheet r because obviously

21

there was a questionnaire sent out, and she said

22

on the website and everything else you guys

23

gather all this information.

24

In your watch compared to the other

25

watches { is it handled differently on these
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1

concerns that when people have, that come here,

2

say, well, you know, this or this r or this or

3

that?
Because what I see more happening often

4

5

now is letters to the editor, where more

6

visitors are speaking out about things.

7

that's why I find it hard to believe that you

8

don't have much.

9

that's why -- my concern.

10

MS. VENCL:

And

But, that's my question, and

My watch is no different than the former

11

watch.

12

things that were -- have been brought up in the

13

past as concerns, as I mentioned yesterday, have

14

been mitigated.

15

with TSA and DOT at our airport.

16

the airport r even in peak times, is mitigated

17

because we go out there and we do music, and we

18

do things that help to alleviate that.

19

that's not the concern that it once was.

20

fact, I have letters that come into my office

21

about how well our Kahului Airport works

22

compared to others.

23

I will still tell you that some of the

I

We have dealt -- we have worked
That wait at

So
In

did look at what -- we have a monthly,

24

what is called a complaints report, that comes

25

into our office.

I

looked at that yesterday as
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1

well.

And that's basically things about

2

particular things that go wrong with someone's

3

vacation.

4

wrong with everybody's vacation, in other words.

5

It is not about a dissatisfaction except maybe

6

they didn't have the experience they thought

7

they would at a vacation rental, a lot of those.

8

Different kinds of those sorts of things are the

9

kinds of complaints that come into our office.

It is not about something that goes

But again, once we pull the website

10
11

compilation together next week, maybe it will

12

give us some different information.

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Any other questions for Ms. Vencl?

15

Ms. Johnson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

Sorry.

I wasn't here

yesterday, Terryl.
One of the questions that I had, and

18
19

because I know you were in on the meeting with

20

the Hawaii Tourism Authority, or the study that

21

they commissioned.

22

sustainability --

23

MS. VENCL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Remember, it was about the

The sustainability?
-- and also I think carrying

capacity?
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1

MS. VENCL:

Mm-hmm.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

MS. VENCL:

No.

Have they put that out yet?

Actually, I have seen a draft of

4

that report, but the full report, as far as I

5

know, is not finished yet.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Any other questions for

8

Ms. Vencl this morning?

9

forward or request her presence back to any

10

budget meeting.

11

MS. VENCL :

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, we can always

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Are there any other requests for

13

testimony this morning by the people in

14

attendance?

15
16

Seeing none, Chair closes testimony for
this day, the 18th of March, 2004.

17

18
19

••. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We will stand in recess until

11 : 00 a. m.

(Gavel. )

20

RECESS:

10:40 a.m.

21

RECONVENE:

11:10 a.m.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel.) The Budget and Finance

23

Committee meeting shall come back to order.

24

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, we will now take up the
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Office of the County clerk.
Please direct your attention to program

2
3

budget 6-2.

4

Hiraga present to discuss his budget with us

5

this morning.
At this time

6
7

8
9

10

11

This morning we have Clerk Roy

l

Mr. Hiraga

l

comments for

the Committee! please.
MR. HIRAGA:

I don't have much comments.

I think I

gave you the overview at the Government
Relations Committee meeting l so ...
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Questions

1

Members?

We will

12

start with Mr. Kane, since the clerk's office

13

comes under his purview.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17
18

higher.
MR. HIRAGA:

I have no questions.

Ms. Johnson?
Your budget is slightly

Is that just due to wage increases?
That's basically due to two factors.

19

One is the professional services! which is the

20

sub-object Code 6132.

21

increase of $30 000.

22

to post-election expenses, 6312, which is a

23

$75,000 increase and that's -- those two

24

appropriations basically account for the 100

25

grand difference.

1

That's basically an
And the second one is due
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

MR. HIRAGA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

Mr. Hiraga, good morning.

8
9

And that's always an

election year you go up?

3

7

Okay.

I just had

some concerns regarding your travel request.

It

10

just does seem a little low, and because this is

11

an election year, and I assume the office will

12

need to travel a little more, can you just

13

comment on whether -- whether the amount shown

14

there is really sufficient to meet your need?

15

MR. HIRAGA:

Thank you, Member Mateo, Mr. Chairman.
If I may, when we developed this budget,

16
17

we -- some of these figures were developed in

18

late August, early September.

19

were basically using airline coupon rates to

20

determine the amount that we would need.

21

have since discovered, I think with almost

22

everybody else, that air fare has basically

23

doubled over coupon rate fares.

24

no objection, yeah, we would like to request a

25

doubling of that account from 5 to 10,000.

At that time, we

So if there's
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Staff so note.

Mr. Mateo.

2

3

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And Mr. Hiraga, one more, again.

4

It is

5

on the same page, that 6-5, under Other Costs,

6

your meal allowance.

7

for 1750.

8

prior to that, is it was over 7,000.

9

kind of like explain the difference in your

10

11
12

This year you are asking

'04 it was only 250, but the year

Can you

request?
MR. HIRAGA:

Mr. Chairman, if I may.

Thank you/

Member Mateo.
That 1750 is actually a mistake.

13

That

14

figure was supposed to be $6,000.

And that

15

basically allows us to pay for the meals that we

16

need to purchase in conjunction with the primary

17

and general election.

18

year,

19

basically to accommodate the two special

20

elections we had to conduct.

The previous election

'03, was about $1/000 higher/ and that was

But yeah, if I could revise that number

21
22

from 1750 to 6,000, so that we can purchase

23

meals for the volunteers on election day.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Clerk.

Thank, Mr. Chair.

25
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Hiraga, you will work with the

2

staff to provide the appropriate corrections for

3

submittal to the Members?

4

MR. HIRAGA:

Yes, we will, Mr. Chairman.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Nishiki.

No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you, Chair.

Roy, so for every election year, we are

9

10

going to see a huge increase from the previous

11

year?

12

MR. HIRAGA:

That's correct.

The two major

13

appropriations included in an election year

14

that's not normally included in an off-election

15

year are post-election expenses.

16

are the two sub-object codes that I recited for

17

Member Johnson.

In fact, those

But it's basically -- one is

18
19

professional services, which is money that we

20

have to pay to our election equipment vendor.

21

That's up -- although we expended 70,000 in the

22

last election, we are requesting $100,000 in

23

anticipation of having to pay for

24

direct-recording electronic voting machines.

25

are anticipating one, at least one per precinct.
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And the second amount is that $75,000

1

2

for post-election expenses.

3

we normally owe the state after the completion

4

of the elections.

5

the expenses that the state incurs.

6

That is moneys that

It is our pro rata share of

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

What kind of

7

influence do you have in increasing the payments

8

for precinct workers?

9

MR. HIRAGA:

Very little.

Actually, that is

10

determined -- the State Office of Election has a

11

certain amount of authority to increase the

12

stipends to these volunteers.

13

highly dependent on the money that the

14

legislature appropriates to the office.

15

But that is

Since -- my understanding is since 1990,

16

there's been very little increase in the

17

appropriations to the State elections office, so

18

they have not been able to accommodate any

19

increases to our precinct volunteers.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

Did we establish

23

earlier in another Committee meeting that the

24

stipend that is given, awarded to the volunteers

25

who work on -- at the elections is set by the
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State and not by each County?
MR. HlRAGA:

Well, it's set by the State -- well,

3

it's not set by the State insofar as them having

4

to pass a bill or anything like that.

5

Office of Election does have some flexibility in

6

the compensation amount, determining the level

7

of compensation.

8

State or the importance of the State in this

9

loop is that depending on the amount of the

The

But the -- the role of the

10

appropriation that the State gives to the State

11

Office of Elections, after the State Office of

12

Elections determines the moneys that they need

13

to conduct all of their core activities, if they

14

have enough, they have the ability to increase

15

the stipends.

16

they have requested of the legislature, they

17

never received full funding, ever, so ...

18

But basically, the money that

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So would it be permissible

19

for the County of Maui to supplement or to

20

contribute to the stipends for the volunteers?

21

Because I do see that Maui elections are a

22

little bit different than other county's

23

elections because we have the first and -- the

24

first special election and the second special

25

election.

So that, in itself, we are not

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

1

91

exactly the same as everyone else.
So has that, or do you know what that

2

3

might entail if

4

hypothetically, if we were to say that we want

5

our volunteers to receive more than they are

6

getting now, can we, as a County, appropriate

7

moneys for that purpose?

8

MR. HlRAGA:

if we were, let's say,

I think I would have to go and,check

9

with, actually, the State Office of Elections,

10

and they in turn, I think, would have to check

11

with the attorney general's office.
But basically, my off-the-cuff answer is

12
13

I don't think so because the stipends are paid

14

by the State, and I am not sure if we could

15

augment or add to the compensation that the

16

State already pays.

17

definitely go and find out if that's a

18

possibility, and I could get back to you.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

But I could -- I will

Yeah, if you would,

Mr. Clerk.
The other question is we, out of our

21
22

budget, though, however, pay for the food for

23

the volunteers during that work time?

24
25

MR. HlRAGA:

Yes.

We pay for the food initially,

but -- and I don't know if I explained this to
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1

you guys previously, but the reason we have that

2

sub-object account that

3

for post-election expenses is during the

4

election season, because we are both really

5

busy, we don't try and settle expenses as they

6

arise.

7

~-

that's specifically

What we do is we just basically keep

8

track of expenses we incur, and HRS stipulates

9

how or who is responsible for the different

10

kinds of expenses.

11

we do like a reconciliation, so the State will

12

assess us for our pro rata share of all the

13

expenses they incur for us -- well, on behalf of

14

the State, and then each County gets its

15

pro rated expense share.

16

same thing.

17

end, with the exception of last election,

18

because of the two specials, in the end, we

19

always owe the State money.

20

At the end of the election,

We basically do the

We bill back the State.

But in the

So basically, in answer to your

21

question, although we pay for the meals up

22

front, most of the meals in this building is a

23

State expense because of the counting center

24

being -- because the counting center being a

25

State responsibility, basically.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I guess, Mr. Clerk, what I

2

was trying to get at are other ways or ways that

3

we can offer some incentives for the people who

4

are coming to volunteer to do this very

5

important work for all of us.
And you know, I sort of recall back when

6
7

we did have some discussions about could we get

8

businesses to donate certificates or food or

9

drink or whatever, you know.

10

That became part

of the discussion at one time.
And it's -- and it's not, we heard from

11

12

you the last meeting that the number of

13

volunteers that you need -- there aren't as many

14

volunteers coming out as before.

15

of volunteers is -- that started way back when,

16

is getting older and older and not able, maybe,

17

physically to take that kind of grueling,

18

12-hour, ten-hour, whatever it turns out to be

19

kind of shift work -- not shift work but just

20

solid, they are there.

21

possibly get into any kind of shift work because

22

the numbers aren't there.

And your core

You couldn't even

So to look at other ways that we can,

23

24

you know, show our appreciation for their

25

commitment to ensuring that our democratic
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1

process, you know, is -- stays alive and well.

2

And you know, to figure some of those things

3

out.

4

different little things, you

5

gimmick thing.

6

marketing firm or promotions firm that can

7

figure out some things for us to do or that can

8

be done so that we can get some other -- I

9

guess, just little tokens of our appreciation

10
11

If we can have drawings for, you know,
kno~.

Any kind of

Maybe we need to get to a

for the work that these volunteers do.
MR. HIRAGA:

Member Tavares, if I may, we -- after

12

the last discussion we had in conjunction with

13

the Government Relations Committee, we did have

14

some discussion between our staff about that

15

proposal.
The thing that or the issues that were

16

17

raised, I guess, were reduced to two basic

18

issues or concerns.

19

prohibits the

20

the providing of food, drinks, et cetera, by

21

candidates, certain entities, candidates,

22

campaigns, et cetera, parties.

One is that state law

the gifting, I guess, of

or

The second part was -- and you know, the

23
24

example we use was, well, or the -- yeah/ the

25

example proposed was, well, why don't we write
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1

to somebody like Krispy Kreme and see whether

2

they would be willing to donate doughnuts or

3

what have you.
And I guess for us, you know, it kind of

4

5

boiled down to if somebody was going to donate

6

something, I guess we would probably want them

7

to donate 600 units so that we could and

8

basically provide everybody with the same

9

product.

If they were willing to only give us

10

100, then we would have to decide which 100

11

volunteers would get doughnuts, which 100

12

volunteers would get -- you know, et cetera,

13

et cetera.
So -- and I got -- I think I've got to

14
15

even do further research to find out, to address

16

the legal issues that may be involved.

17

yeah, while they may not be constituted as a

18

candidate or campaign committee, they are

19

supporters.

20

drawn between being campaign related or --

21

24

I don't know Where that line is

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

22

23

Because,

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll?

Mr. Kane?

Any other

questions for the Clerk this morning, Members?
If not

25

l

Mr. Clerk, we would ask you
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1

again to work with the Committee staff for the

2

appropriate adjustments to your detailed budget

3

sheets.

4

MR. HIRAGA:

We will be glad to do so, Mr. Chairman.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

One quick question, which is part of

6

Ms. Tavares', are you anticipating a shortage of

7

volunteer election workers?

8

you are kind of hinting.

9

MR. HIRAGA:

Without saying it,

The short answer is yes.

We almost

10

always expect a shortage.

11

the reasons we have resorted to conducting media

12

campaigns to try and attract people.

13

informed you the last time, we work closely with

14

The Maui News and Editor Tanji has been nice

15

enough to print articles in the past for us that

16

has resulted in us obtaining a number of names

17

of volunteers.

18

And that is one of

As I

But it's something that I don't think is

19

unique to Maui.

20

time, you know/ the State of California, in one

21

of its municipalities, two weeks prior to its

22

election, they were 500 volunteers short.

23

it's something that is experienced, I think/ by

24

all election administrators across the nation.

25

But I think we can deal with it.

As I informed you the last
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I know we have Members who

2

participate with service organizations, whether

3

it be Lions

4

to consider them as part of a community service

5

project for consideration.

6

MR. HIRAGA:

I

Rotaries, Kiwanis.

You might want

And Mr. Chair, if I may add to that,

7

along those lines, the State Office of Election

8

has established a program whereby nonprofits can

9

have its members participate in the election and

10

basically sign over the stipends to that

11

nonprofit agency.

12

that have conducted fundraising efforts -- and I

13

think Baldwin High School is one of them -- to

14

fund various programs or activities for those

15

nonprofit groups.

16

that is interested.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So we have had some groups

So we would welcome any group
They can call our office.

Thank you very much.

18

further for the Office of the Clerk?

19

Seeing none, thank you very much.

20

We will bring up Ms. Lee.

Any
Okay.

I believe we

21

need five minutes to set up the requirements,

22

staff?

23

come down.

They are ready_

Ms. Lee could

Do we need to adjust the lighting for

24
25

Okay.

Ms. Lee?

Members, you do have a
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1

hard copy handout that the Department did

2

provide to you.

3

much better help for everyone.

6
7

8
9

10

presentation with the lighting?
MS. LEE:

Yes.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN CONCERNS

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Okay.

Members, this morning, we have

Director Lee, and Deputy Director Mr. Andaya, so
thank you for being present this morning.
Ms. Lee, if you would, please.

11

12

I think that's a big

Ms. Lee, are you able to give your

4
5

Okay.

MS. LEE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning,

Members of the Budget Committee.

14

We will be giving you a brief overview

15

of the changes, the substantial changes within

16

the Department of Housing and Human Concerns.

17

This is a very short PowerPoint that we would

18

like to present to you, and you do have hard

19

copies that were provided to you.

r think most of you are already familiar

20

21

with the varied services within our department,

22

and there's probably no need to go over each

23

division and each program, unless, of course,

24

you need some clarification or information.

25

instead, what we would like to do is just show
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1

you some of the expansions that we are

2

requesting, because pretty much the budget is a

3

flat budget except for what I will be pointing

4

out to you.
Helping us with our presentation is our

5

6

Executive Assistant, Mel Dadez.

In the

7

audience, I would like to point out that there

8

are a number of people here who are available as

9

resources with regard to substance abuse,

10

homeless, early childhood education, Kaunoa

11

Senior Services, Office of Aging, Immigrant

12

Services, and Grants Management.

13

May we go to the next slide, please.

14

That's all of us.

And one day, we

15

will -- we will make our mission station

16

grammatically correct; but in the meantime, our

17

mission is to support and empower our community

18

to reach its fullest potential for personal

19

well-being and self-reliance.

20

that the key words here is empower, personal

21

well-being, and self-reliance.

22

across all programs in all divisions of our

23

of our department, and which supports the

24

Mayor's mission for the community.

And I would say

And this cuts

Next.

25
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Our goals are simple.

1

GenerallYI it's

2

to support and maintain a continuum of social

3

services to address the needs of the people of

4

Maui County through County-sponsored programs

5

and partnerships! to expand affordable housing

6

opportunities for low and moderate income

7

families and support the development of special

8

needs housing.
Next

9

I

please.

10

And here we are

l

the pie charts.

11

is no change in Housing

l

or very little change

12

in Housing

13

position which I will explain to you later about

14

that in Housing.

15

in Human Concerns, but more particularly for the

16

expansion in West Maui r as soon as we are able

17

to occupy our new home

18

Animal Management has representatives here today

19

to explain their budget.

20

budget is -- has no change

21

Revenue is up somewhat.

l

I should say.

There

We are asking for one

There's a number of positions

I

West Maui Senior Center.

Our Administration
I

and our Grant

22

Next slide, please.

23

Starting with Grants Management, as you

24

know, our Grants Management Division staffs the

25

Grants Review Committee.

And together, both
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1

groups do a lot of traveling for inspections (

2

for meetings, and so forth.

3

all of you know, air

4

substantially recently, we are asking for an

5

expansion of 11,000 -- or excuse me -- an

6

addition of $11,380, and that is the breakdown,

7

and you have a copy of that in your packet.

So -- and since, as

air fares have gone up

8

Okay, Mel.

9

Again, here, it explains further why we

10

are asking for this additional money on the air

11

fare and publications and subscriptions.

12

Next.

13

Our Housing Division, Expansion

14

Justification.

15

Program Specialist, office furniture and

16

equipment for that specialist r and $10 r OOO in

17

contractual services.

18

position is -- would be assigned to a couple of

19

hopefully new programs subject to your approval.

20

We are asking for one Housing

The Housing Specialist

One would be if the ordinance on real

21

property tax exemption is passed

22

someone to administer that program.

2,3

secondlYI we are going to be working on a

24

retrofit program for the elderly so that we can

25

support them as they age in place.

l

we will need
And

This is a
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1

very important position in order to have that

2

program succeed.

3

The contractual services, $10,000, as

4

you will see in your packet, is for assisting

5

contracting with someone to assist us in the

6

drafting of our consolidated plan, our keeper,

7

and our annual action plan.

8

Next.

9

And again, here is a further breakdown

10

and explanation on all three items that I talked

11

about.

12

Next.

13

The more extensive request and expansion

14

is in the Kaunoa Senior Services, and this is a

15

breakdown of the need for positions, and we are

16

asking for one Nutrition Program Aide, half

17

timej one Leisure -- excuse me, two Leisure

18

Program Instructor positions.

19

Keep in mind, though, that these

20

positions really will not contain any -- any

21

warm body, so to speak.

22

that we can contract with instructors for a

23

variety of different kinds of workshops and

24

educational types of programs.

25

sure you all recall the difficult -- difficulty

These positions are so

This
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1

we had trying to appease DPS and Corp. Counsel,

2

and we all ended up getting positions and

3

putting about 20 different people into two

4

positions.
Then we have one Senior Services

5

6

Aide II; one Senior Services Program Specialist

7

IV, who will pretty much run the West Maui

8

Senior Center; two Program Assistants II; one

9

Clerk-Typist III; and two park caretakers.

The

10

Slze of this new center is about two-thirds the

11

size of Kaunoa.
Then we have the additional funding

12
13

requests for operations, and additional moneys

14

for our Meals on Wheels program and nutrition

15

program.

16

month, is really for the island of Molokai.

17

That's how much we have to pay to Hale Mahaolu,

18

per month.

19

in the air conditioners, by the way.

20

The rental of the building, $425 a

And at the same place we are putting

And then we have various furnishings

21

that we need, and then the automobiles and

22

vehicles.

23

four-door compact station wagon, two four-door

24

compact station wagons, and one four-door

25

station wagon?

One three-quarter-ton truck, one
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Mel.

1

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Just one quick question,

3

Ms. Lee, if you could go back one.

4

the -- all of the four-door station wagons

5

separated that way, instead of just saying four

6

four-door station wagons?

7

MS. LEE:

Why is

Well, one difference is the last four-door

8

station wagon r the $23 r OOO one, is for our

9

Assisted Transportation program r which needs to

10

be bigger for those who are especially frail and

11

elderly.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

MS. LEE:

Okay.

And then I need to check but it could be

14

for -- two may be for Meals on Wheels -- excuse

15

me.

16

believe, are replacement vehiclesi whereas, the

17

rest r the three-quarter-ton truck, the one

18

four-door compact station wagon, and the one

19

four-door station wagon are for West Maui, and

20

the second to the last item is for Kaunoa Senior

21

Services.

Two at the bottom r second to the last, I

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

MS. LEE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mel.

24

And here is a breakdown.

25

Next.

Next.

Let's check the vehicles,
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Okay.
Okay.

2

Let's see.
In the middle, it says the

3

four-door compact station wagon, Meals on Wheels

4

program, two of them.

5

to replace two aging vehicles that are

6

constantly in the repair shop and not suited for

7

use.

The vehicles are needed

8

Next.

9

Office on Aging Expansion Justification.

10

This would be used from Grant Revenue, so Grant

11

Revenue would pay for this position.

12

know, we -- the demand for our services never

13

stops.

14

we need to have more resources and a bigger

15

staff in order to even try to meet and address

16

the needs of the aged.

17

Next?

18

And here is John Tomoso's explanation.

19

As you

And as more and more people are aging,

Next.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

MS. LEE:

Looks like John Tomoso.

And then we have the -- I just thought in

22

case you might ask again what is the status of

23

the West Maui Senior Center, I added that to

24

this report.

25

you that we are expecting to open it this

And as I think I have already told
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summer t but we are not exactly sure when.

2

Next.

3

And then finally, the Kaunoa Senior

4

Wellness Center.

And be assured that as soon as

5

we are able to open these two facilities, we

6

will be sending all of you invitations.
That covers pretty much our expansions

7
8

and our reasons for and justifications for these

9

expansions.

Also, for your information, in your

10

packet, whenever you see an expansion, there

11

is -- there is a notation where it refers to a

12

page number in your performance budget booklet

13

so that you can see the relevant goal and the

14

relevant activity.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

15
16

17

I would be happy

to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Ms. Lee, for that visual

18

presentation.

I think all those in attendance

19

was able to understand your consideration.

20

Okay.
Staff, if you can get the lights back up

21
22

to normal level

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

t

please.
Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you.

If Mr. Dadez can go
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back to the Kaunoa

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

Oh, hold on.
-- the Kaunoa Senior Center

expansion justification sheet.
Thank you.

5

On the screen, and on my

6

paper, on the second -- under Leisure Program

7

Instructor positions, two of them, on the screen

8

it shows 45,000 and what I have from you is a

9

zero.

So which

is it an addition at this

10

point, or is there a correction on the sheets

11

you gave to us?

12

13

MS. LEE:

That you think for pointing that out,

Council Member.
We did delete the 45,000 this morning

14
15

because it -- we didn't want to confuse anyone

16

and lead you to think that would be for

17

positions.

18

instructors, and that's really an operations, in

19

the operational portion of the budget.

20
21
22
23
24
25

45,000 is really for paying the

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

So the bottom cost

remains as is, the total.
MS. LEE:

Well, the bottom cost should be $45 / 000

less.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you very much t Ms. Lee.

Thank you Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Any other requests by the

2

Committee for that -- that would be part of this

3

visual portion at this time, Members?

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

Ms. Tavares.
I think it is the next slide,

7

that starts with the Nutrition Program Aide.

8

the Leisure Program Instructor positions, this

9

is where you are explaining the two positions

10

will be used to hire the instructors that work

11

four to six hours a week?

12

you are referring to that's coming out of

13

operations because they are not --

14

MS. LEE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So this is the one

Yes.
So these people are not

16

considered employees of the County of Maui, or

17

they still are?

18

MS. LEE:

On

Or have we resolved that issue?

They are considered employees, but I think

19

Traci Villarosa should explain that once again,

20

because they may work like a fraction -- they

21

represent a fraction of a whole.

22

people would fit into one position.

23
24

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right.

So maybe 10

Because it is a

40-hour position, and FTE is 40 hours.
MS. LEE:

Yes.

Yes.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

MS. LEE:

3
4

All right.

Thanks.

We are trying simply to comply with

possible Internal Revenue regulations.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

And again, Members

I

we will -- we

5

dealt with -- we have tried to deal with it last

6

year.

7

consideration on the position count

8

continue to work with Ms. Lee and Corporation

9

Counsel to place it in the budget appropriately.

I believe we went with the LTA

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12
13

but we will

Mr. Pontanilla.

10
11

I

Thank you, Chair.

Coming back to the expansion
justification --

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Which one do you want?

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Expansion justification.

16

That's the one that was previous to this slide.

17

The Senior Service Program Specialist IV, that

18

would be for West Maui Center?

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

Yes.
And the next one down,

Program Assistant II, West Maui Center also?

22

MS. LEE:

Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MS. LEE:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And then the Clerk-Typist?

Yes, and the Park Caretakers?
Both of them?
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Yes, because we have two at Kaunoa right

now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

West Maui Center would be six?
MS. LEE:

Eight?

Isn't that eight?

6

Mr. Pontanilla.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9
10

11

So the total manpower for

I see eight,

Eight?

Ms. Lee, maybe it would help the

Committee see where the other two positions are,
if you could state that, please.
MS. LEE:

Well, not counting the Leisure Program

12

Instructors program, right, because I explained

13

that to you?

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

MS. LEE:

Right.

The other two positions, one would be in

16

Housing, and the other one in Office of Aging

17

under Grant Revenue.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's on a different portion,

19

Mr. Pontanilla?

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21
22
23

That's not shown on this

sheet, then.
MS. LEE:

It is shown

the Housing one is before

this sheet, and the Aging one is after.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Any other questions?
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will work right down.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki.

I have a question in regards to

3

the two park caretakers, which is going to be

4

specifically for the West Maui Senior Center?

5

MS. LEE:

6

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

8
9

Yes.
What kind of area do they have

to take care of?
MS. LEE:

Well, the area that we have there is -- let

me see if I have it here.

No, it's 1.844 acres.

10

Keep in mind, the park caretakers also clean the

11

rest rooms and so forth.

12
13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So that would include the facilities,

also, right, Ms. Lee?

14

MS. LEE:

Yes.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

18

19

Mr. Nishiki.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

On the Housing Program Specialist III,

20

21

one of their responsibilities is for that aging

22

in place retrofit program.

23

this something that's concocted out of the

24

County or this has ties to federal?

25

MS. LEE:

This program, is

What we are hoping to do is get federal
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1

acquire federal funds in order to have this type

2

of program.

3

federal funds, we would come to you, and we have

4

an old Housing account that has about, oh, maybe

5

150 to 200,000 in it.

6

revolving account, and we would ask that you

7

would appropriate those funds for this type of

8

loan program.

9

fairly confident that we can get some federal

10

11

And if we weren't able to obtain

It is an interim,

If we weren't able to -- we feel

funds for this program.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And next -- other

12

question is on the expansion of the West Maui

13

Meals on Wheels program, just curious about the

14

criteria.

15

seniors will receive daily hot meals in the West

16

Maui area, so you are just going to look at

17

that -- you consider frail as just by physical?

18

Like you know you get some seniors that are 75

19

but they still pretty active.

20

course you have some seniors who are younger

21

than that and are frail.

It mentions here 35 more frail

And then of

I am just curious, how are you going to

22

23

determine

24

then, necessarily, just more so by their

25

physical abilities or lack thereof?

so you are not going to go by age
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We will have to screen them and they need

2

to meet eligibility requirements in order for

3

them to be able to access our program.

4

has been our -- our weakness in the past is that

5

because we are located centrally, we havenlt

6

been really able to service a lot of people on

7

the west side who need services.

8

35 is quite small in number, you know.

9

is much greater.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Right.

Okay.

But that

And actually,
The need

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.
Alice, on the Meals on Wheels

13

vehicles for the expansion, are those for the

14

County employees or will those be for the

15

vehicles that the people will be using who

16

actually go out and deliver the meals?

17
18

19

MS. LEE:

The people who go out and deliver the meals

will be County employees.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So we donlt have a

20

volunteer, like RSVP, or any program out there

21

to deliver the meals, and then have the people

22

get reimbursed for using their own vehicles so

23

much per mile?

24
25

MS. LEE:

Infrequently, we rely on volunteers

because -- but we do when we need them.
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1

very concerned about liability issues, so we try

2

not to do that.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And then the other one

4

is the same question Mr. Nishiki asked about the

5

park caretakers.

6

positions or part-time?

Because -- those are full-time

7

MS. LEE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Full-time.

fringe benefits

Okay.

And so, with the

that's all-inclusive in that

l

10

25,000, with the -- all of the benefits that

11

County employees have, insurance and everything

12

else?

13

MS. LEE:

Yes.

Some of those positions listed,

14

yeah -- some of those positions listed are not a

15

full year.

16

be for six months or so.

17

open the doors and have a full staff all of a

18

sudden.

19

in some cases, we show -- in the explanation not

20

on this list, we show maybe six months, you

21

know, something like that.

22

So you need to -- some of them might
We don't expect to

It will take time to hire people.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So

Did you do a cost comparison

23

for, let's say, some of the services

I know

24

that in some of our parks! we have -- I think

25

it's Jamie's

and I can't remember -- Kalima,
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1

for example, come in and do the work in some of

2

our parks where it's a contract.

3

comparison on those park caretakers positions?

Did you do a

4

MS. LEE:

Councilmember Johnson, we don't really need

5

to.

I mean, our staff, especially at Kaunoa, we

6

stretch each and everyone of them to the limit.

7

So they are participating in events, they are

8

working on scenery, they are doing everything

9

and everything imaginable.

10
11

Our administrator,

Robin Tanaka, is quite demanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So it's not just like a

12

simple park caretaker, where you go and do the

13

Weed Whacking?

14

MS. LEE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

No, they are expected to do a lot more.
Okay.

Mr. Kane?

Mr. Carroll, questions?

Anything else on this portion, Mr. Pontanilla?

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

21

Thank you.

Not on this portion.

Mr. Nishiki.
Yeah

t

you know, seniors need

exercise, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We all do.

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

And they, you know, and they

24

we feed them and everything.

25

too.

I am a senior,

And you know, if there's one thing I
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1

realize, I think, is we need to ask them to

2

volunteer.

3

volunteer, but this is a facility that is

4

specifically being built for them.

5

that, just as they use itT they can really kokua

6

their time to volunteer some of these kinds of

7

services.

I would hope

And I don't personally feel that I want

8
9

And I don't know how much they would

to fund a lot of these positions.

I will be

10

outright right now and straight about it.

And

11

you know, to me, with facilities that we build,

12

and specifically for a group of people, I would

13

hope that we can see more volunteerism in it,

14

Mr. Chairman.

15

these people to volunteer.

16

service them

17

I think that at the same time, we should ask

18

them to.

You know, we've got to try to get
Simply to just

yeah, they are our elderly, but

And I am sure that a lot of them would

19
20

if they knew that it cost money also to provide

21

these facilities, you know.

22

come and lobby us, but I think it's about time

23

that we lobby them back and ask them to help.

24

Thank you.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And we see them

Thank you for your comment.
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Any other questions as regards to what

1

2

was presented on the wall, Members?

3

Ms. Lee, I am going to recess this meeting.

4

What would be the first division you would like

5

to bring up right after lunch?

6
7.

8
9

MS. LEE:

If not,

We will just follow the performance budget,

if that's what you would like to do.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So, Members, when we return

from lunch, we will start with the

10

Administrations portion of the department and go

11

right through.

12

that we can complete this department review so

13

that we can adjourn in time for Mr. Nishiki's

14

planning requirements.

15

1:30 p.m.

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We stand in recess until

(Gavel.)

16

18

And it is the Chair's intention

11:56 a.m.
1:38 p.m.

(Gavel.) We shall reconvene the Budget

19

and Finance Committee meeting for the 18th of

20

March.

21

Human Concerns.

We are on the Department of Housing and

Director Lee, if you would please

22
23

well, before

24

Mr. Agsalog, Budget Director, do you have any

25

comments you wish to share at this time?

I

ask the director

l

does
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MR. AGSALOG:

No, Mr. Chair.

Director Lee and Deputy

2

Director Herman Andaya, I think, are handling it

3

very well, their own departments, so they don't

4

even need me here.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

you.

9
10

Thank

Director Lee, please.

7

8

I didn't say that now, Danny.

MS. LEE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I would be open for

any and all questions at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Members, why don't we start

11

with administration portion of the budget.

12

Details, I would say you can start looking from

13

page 9-3, in your details, 9-6 in your program.
Mr. Pontanilla, you are our subject

14
15

matter Chair, do you have any questions at this

16

round regarding the Administration portion of

17

her department?

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

Administration.

I yield.

Administration?

Administration, yeah, we will go

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No questions on the

Ms. Tavares?
No.

Mr. Kane?

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

119

1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10
11

No.

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

No.

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Nishiki?
No.

Any comments, Director Lee, you or

your Deputy regarding the area of Administration
that you would like to make comment on, please?
MS. LEE:

Mr. Chair, I believe the only change there

12

is from last year's performance or program

13

budget is that now the Administration has

14

included performance -- well, goals, activities,

15

performance measures for the Administration.

16

But as far as the actual budget is concerned,

17

there is no change.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Members, on 9-6 through

19

9-8/ Director Lee has informed you of her

20

various goals and objectives through the

21

activities.

22

Ms. Tavares.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Any questions on those areas?

Just a general comment,

24

Mr. Chair.

The performance measures for this

25

department seem to be actually written as
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1

performance measures, and I want to congratulate

2

the department on writing what are truly

3

measurable performance measures.

4

MS. LEE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.
I would concur.
Anyone else?

6

Thank you.

Seeing none, let us move

7

on to the next portion of the department's

8

request.

9

area, 9-5 on your details.

10

MS. LEE:

Housing program, 9-10 on your program
Comments, Ms. Lee?

The only comment I have would be to just

11

refer you back to our submittal regarding the

12

expansion position, and the explanation on the

13

expansions.

14

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Questions? .

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Not at this time.

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

18

19

Mr. Pontanilla?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

Just one.

20

noted on your program budget, 9-15, that you

21

have a request for one new position, although

22

the total budget shows a decrease from Fiscal

23

Year 2004.

Do you want to delve a little bit

24

into that?

Not often we see a reduction in a

25

request.
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Again, Council Member, could you show me --

tell me where you are looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9-15 of the program budget,

4

and your program total, down at the bottom.

5

fiscal '04 appropriation is 353,000, and your

6

total for FY '05 is 306,000 1 which is a

7

decrease.

8

not.

9

MS. LEE:

Is that typographical error?

The

I hope

No, not really, but we probably don't

10

deserve congratulations.

11

you are going to see where we

12

to salaries that didn't materialize last year.

13

So throughout the divisions, you are going to

14

see salaries actually go down in some cases.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Throughout the budget,

Oh, okay.

~ade

adjustments

So that's the

explanation throughout?

17

MS. LEE:

Yes.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Kane?
Yeah.

Ms. Lee, I am sorry, and

21

just in that same area, just for clarification

22

because the -- on line 15 of the program,

23

operations for '04 appropriation was 106,000,

24

and then the request is for 17,000.

25

can you explain that difference, that
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approximately 90 1 000 difference?

2

MS. LEE:

On page 9-15 of the program budget?

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, within the program, where

4

it says general fund area.

5

across at FY '04 appropriation, you have an

6

operations amount.

7

And then right next to it, In your request, you

8

have 17,000 in your B account.

9

again, just for clarity, the difference between

10
11

And then you look

Your B account is 106,000.

And I am just --

operations in '04 and '05 being almost
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, if I can interject, and

12

Miss -- the director can make her comments also.

13

Last year, when we did the adjustments in the

14

categories of real property taxation, part of

15

the adjustment we made was in the area of

16

apartments --

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The renters.

-- and therefore~ as part of our way

19

to provide some sort of relief, we also added

20

$100,000 under the Housing rental program that

21

would allow the Department to develop a program

22

or to provide some type of relief for qualified

23

applicants in the rental situation, in

24

apartments, if you recall.

25

not part of their consideration.

And this year, it is
And that would
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MS. LEE:

Thank you for helping us with that

4

explanation.

5

want.

6

Let me give you an update, if you

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Well, that was where I was

7

leading to, because I am on 9-6, and I saw the

8

100 not there, so I wanted you to explain to us

9

first why there was a difference,and then get

10
11

into what Mr. Hokama just asked you about.
MS. LEE:

That grant agreement hasn't been fully

12

executed yet.

Corp. Counsel is reviewing the

13

grant agreement.

14

we will proceed in releasing the funds.

And as soon as he is finished,

So this is March already, so by the time

15
16

the funds are released might be April.

17

that's why we are not including the 100,000, and

18

perhaps in the following year, we will include

19

the 100,000 again.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So

So where would it show up in

21

your -- because if you are not going to utilize

22

a majority of it, I am assuming, because of the

23

timing, Director Lee?

24

going to be counted, I'm assuming it's

25

carryover, then, because you won't utilize it in

So where, then! if that's
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this fiscal year, or a majority of it.
MS. LEE:

No, we will -- we will grant the full

3

amount.

4

year

5

carryover.

6
7

8

t

We will encumber it for this fiscal

so it wouldn't be -- there wouldn't be any

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank

you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

9

10

Thank you, for clarity.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Alice, in

because I

11

know that with the Affordable Housing Task Force

12

and with all the recommendations, I know that,

13

Herman, you are going to be heading up the

14

affordable housing section.
Is your salary included within the

15

16

Administration part, or is it tied into this

17

portion?

18
19

20

MR. ANDAYA:

No, I believe it's not tied in with this

portion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And where would it be?

21

would we find that?

22

regular position, you are not going to be

23

receiving --

24

MR. ANDAYA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Or is it just

with your

Right.
-- it would be in
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Administration?
Right.

Right?

2

MR. ANDAYA:

Right.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

All right.

So there's no

4

additional moneys you need to operate within

5

that new context.

6
7

MR. ANDAYA:

Yeah, so far I haven't received any new

moneys to do my work.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Ms. Lee, the voucher program, the

11
12

Section 8 program, I guess an allocation of 1464

13

vouchers was made, yeah?

14

of those that r you know r are still waiting

15

for

16

MS. LEE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

What is the wait list

1,900.

In your strategic planning

18

process, is there a way of addressing the wait

19

list?

20

MS. LEE:

We are always trying to obtain new

21

vouchers, and there is a possibility that we may

22

be able to acquire some from unused vouchers

23

from Kauai County.

24

though we keep applying for new vouchers,

25

generally there aren't any nationally.

But other than that, even
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

MS. LEE:

So there's --

So there is an ordinance that we drafted,

3

which is in the Mayor's office right now, which

4

would address those who essentially are still

5

within a certain income category, and we can't

6

assist because we don't have any vouchers, those

7

earning 80 percent and less of median income;

8

that it would provide a landlord or a property

9

owner with a substantial real property tax

10

exemption if that person rented to not

11

necessarily a Section 8 client, but anyone

12

earning zero to 80 percent of median income,

13

that they would be able to obtain a substantial

14

real property tax exemption.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And there is no -- once

16

somebody qualifies for Section 8, and they get

17

one of the vouchers, there is no window like you

18

can qualify under our program or this program

19

only for "X" amount of years, and then you have

20

got to go out on your own so we can take care of

21

the wait list?

22

one receiving --

23

MS. LEE:

There's no time limitation for

No, there's no time limitation; however, we

24

do have -- we do partner with Charlie Ridings,

25

MECC, with the Self-Sufficiency Program, which
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1

has been quite successful.

2

to partner with MEO, with the $100,000 for a

3

similar type of program whereby there would be

4

case management and educational, informational

5

services provided to clients to ready them

6

for -- for home ownership.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

We also are trying

And that 1,000-plus wait

8

list, your own projection of that continuing to

9

grow, so within another year, we are looking at

10
11

another thousand -- what does the number become?
MS. LEE:

Well, we believe if -- if, let's say, the

12

Council would pass an ordinance which would

13

provide relief to property owners, if they

14

rented to those earning zero to 80 percent of

15

median income, that should provide for, we

16

think, a substantial number -- a substantial

17

number of homes, rentals.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Ms. Lee.

Thank you

Chair.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

No.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

First

24

of all, are we going to go through this whole

25

thing here, as far as the Human Concerns I rather
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1

than us sticking to one page?

2

on page 9-20.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I have questions

As long as it's within the Housing

4

Division, at this time, yeah, I have no problems

5

because we will be going through every single

6

division of Ms. Lee's department.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Yeah.

I am looking

8

at the line item for Self-Help Housing, if the

9

Director can explain that.

10

MS. LEE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

MS. LEE:

9-20.

In the performance budget?
The details.

Or the details?
,
,

That w~~ld be for Hana.

13

There is --

i,

14

there's a proj elct currently under way in Hana

15

which is the pe~son who's handling that is

16

Claudia Shay with
the Self-Help Corporation of
I

,

I

I,

,

17

Hawaii, and shei is in the process of -- let's

18

see, providing about 10 to 15 affordable homes

19

in Hana.

20

project.

I,

I

So this would be to assist that
I,I

21

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTAN±LLA:
you, Chair.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank

I
I

:
I

23
24

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I

One s1cond, please, Ms. Tavares.

Mr. Nishiki?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I

\Yeah, I just wanted - - when you
I
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1

are ready to discuss animal control, I want to

2

ask Alice a question.

3
4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

of her department.
Ms. Tavares.

5

6

We will eventually reach that portion

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Alice you talked about

7

the people on the wait list.

8

zero to 80 percent, or is it a mix of incomes?

9

MS. LEE:

Well, that's what the program is for.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

MS. LEE:

12

Is that just the

The zero to 80 --

Actually, it's 50 percent.

percent.

It's 50

Zero to 50.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MS. LEE:

Zero to 50.

Zero to 50.

However, when you are on the

15

program, and you move up to 80, you know, you

16

can move up to 80.

17

But in order to enter the program and be

18

eligible, you have to start at 50 percent.

That's -- that's acceptable.

Now these are people who have signed up

19
20

over a period of time.

It could be the last

21

three years.

22

have received raises or they may have moved to

23

another county.

24

are -- are not, you know, completely -- well, in

25

other words, these numbers could change easily

Since then, you know, they may

So those are numbers that
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1

after we begin to go through the call-ups and

2

verify income and employment and so forth.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Of this number that's

4

supposedly -- that's on this wait list, would

5

would you be able to estimate of those how many

6

of them could qualify for purchasing an

7

affordable home, you know/ as opposed to

8

rentals?

9
10

11

MS. LEE:

Without some research, I wouldn't be able

to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Well, your -- your

12

vouchers that you get, that's a rental program,

13

is it not?

14

MS. LEE:

Yes.

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And the proposed ordinance

16

that you have is to encourage people to have

17

rentals available to these people?

18

MS. LEE:

Yes.

Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So there is, in your sense,

20

or isn't, a need for affordable rentals

21

throughout our County?

22

MS. LEE:

Well, we have over 1,900 people signed up

23

for rentals.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

for rentals.

Oh , this is -- oh, signed up
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1

MS. LEE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MS. LEE:

4

Yes, yes.

And we have almost 1,500 on the program in

rentals.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

information.

7

Oh, gosh.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that

Ms. Lee, that 50,000 that

8

Mr. Pontanilla asked about the Self-Help project

9

you are requesting funding for, the SO/ODD goes

10

to what?

The admin -- help administer the

11

Self-Help program for Ms. Shay, or does that pay

12

for design, help to assist in designing units

13

within the project?

14

how

15

MS. LEE:

Can you share with us

what the details would be for the 50,000?
Mr. Chair, I would have to get back to you

16

on that.

17

request of Councilmember Carroll, and he, I

18

believe, has that breakdown.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Actually, this was

Okay.

this was a

We will put in a request,

20

Lance/ to Mr. Carroll/ to help explain the

21

breakout for the SO/ODD.

22

MS. LEE:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Thank you/ Ms. Lee.

You're welcome.
Mr. Kane?

Ms. Johnson.
Alice, this would be on page

9-17 in the detail.

There's, in '04, there was
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1

623,656, and then in this next fiscal year, we

2

are up to $680,026.

3

some of the areas where, you know, where some of

4

the expenses are occurring.

5

things that I saw is that on line 6138 on 9-16,

6

your repair and maintenance service contracts

7

was 33,000, but then it's now going to 1700.

And one of the

In some of these areas, are you now

8

9

And I was just looking at

going to be contracting out those services as

10

opposed to doing those in-house, or why is that

11

shifting over?

12

project?

Or was that for some specific

13

MS. LEE:

I believe it was for a specific project.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And then can you kind

15

of just highlight for us the difference, then,

16

between the 633 and the 680?

17

the brunt of it is in your meal programs.

18

think that's where the biggest increase, and

19

that's line 6219 on page 9-17.

20

because we have so much greater demand?

21

22
23

MS. LEE:

Because I think
I

Is it just

Almost all of those increases are for West

Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that's because now we are

24

going to be doing those programs in an area that

25

we weren't previously?
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1

MS. LEE:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

you know,

I just

3

because if people ask us, I want to be able to

4

understand myself so that I can explain it to

5

them.

Thank you.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

No.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Nishiki?

No.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Mr. Mateo?

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Anyone has further questions in the

area of Housing Division?

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If not

l

let us

Oh, I have one.

I am sorry.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
Ms. Lee, if we ever got to a

17

situation where we were going to provide for

18

affordable rentals in perpetuity, would this be

19

something that your department or your program

20

could also manage?

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

With additional resources, yes.

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Anyone else?

Mr. Kane.

Just some background on the

Alu Like, the Kahua Ola Hou Molokai l 150 1 000,
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some background, please.
MS. LEE:

That is a grant for an agency on Molokai, a

substance abuse treatment program for youth.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

5

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Anyone else?

Yes, Mr. Nishiki.

Yeah, tied into what Charmaine

8

just prefaced, Alice, we have Mr.

9

call him?

what do I

Mr. A here, who is the housing guru
Okay.

What does that mean?

10

now, I heard.

11

does that mean, that he is the housing guru?

12

call him the guru, but whatever they --

13

MS. LEE:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

She asked you about that housing

thing, but what is that goal now of Mr. A?

16

Mr. Andaya?
MS. LEE:

I

That means he is the guru of housing.

15

17

What

Mr. Andaya has graciously accepted the

18

title of Affordable Housing Coordinator without

19

any extra money, any extra resources.

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

21

MS. LEE:

Right.

His primary job is to ensure that all

22

affordable housing projects are expedited

23

through the administrative process.

24

permitting.

25

project, and we all turn around and give it to

So once you give your approval to a
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him.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

That's it.

So there's no

3

reflection in the budget that addresses his

4

responsibility and what his basic job is going

5

to address?

6

MS. LEE:

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

11

No.

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just on that line, Mr. Miskae

was in that position before?

12

MS. LEE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Was he the one?

Yes.
I think, when he made the

14

decision to leave, there were questions that

15

were posed -- or actually there were, I think,

16

comments within the community hoping that

17

because of how pressing this issue is that we

18

bring in somebody with background.

19

it's a fair question to ask about Mr. Andaya's

20

background in this particular area since he will

21

be responsible for making sure that everything

22

gets through.

23

question on the table, and if Mr. Andaya can

24

perhaps give us some background that he has in

25

this particular area.

Is -- I would like to put that
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And I don't mean to put you on the spot,

1

2

but I guess I mean to put you on the spot,

3

because the question in the public has been

4

asked.

5

MR. ANDAYA:

My background is pretty much what I have

6

learned during the course of the year, sitting

7

in on meetings with developers, learning about

8

the permitting process, things like that.

9

I

What

have been doing since Mr. Miskae resigned was

10

we've been meeting weekly with department heads,

11

division heads, and we have been meeting with

12

developers, bringing developers in, introducing

13

the Committee Members, the development, you

14

know.

15

pre-empt or we would address a lot of the

16

concerns, future concerns, that may come up as a

17

development proceeds, as a development, you

18

know, happens.

19

doing.

And in doing that, we hope that we would

So

20

I

And so that's what we have been

have been doing pretty much what

21

Mr. Miskae has been doing in the last month or

22

so.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

MR. ANDAYA:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Anyone else?
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1

Mr. Pontanilla.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

This question

3

is for Herman.

4

departments, because affordable housing is so

5

important, do they carry it as a high priority

6

for the County?

7

MR. ANDAYA:

When you meet with the various

So far t Councilman t

they have been

8

attending our meetings.

We have weekly

9

meetings -- almost every week, we have been

10

meeting, and almost -- I mean, almost all of

11

them are there.

12

because t you know, they are here in Councilor

13

whatever the case may be.

14

part, they have been there, and they have been

15

pretty cooperative.

16
17

Maybe one can't make it

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So it is a high priority

for all the departments?

18

MR. ANDAYA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

But for the most

Yes, it is.

It is.
Thank you.

Anyone else?
I will save mine until later.

Thank you! Mr. Nishiki.
Mr. Andaya, do you have any approaches

24

you can share with us this afternoon?

We've

25

received comment, and some I would say are
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1

appropriate criticism of the County.

And as

2

part of the County, we accept our fair share of

3

that responsibility.
But we have in the past conditioned much

4

5

land use approvals to perform and deliver "X"

6

amount of units of affordable housing to our

7

community, to our people.

8

put a time trigger to initiate the delivery of

9

those units; however, in the code, there is a

Some say we did not

10

five-year limitation for compliance with

11

conditions of approval in the area of

12

conditional zoning.

13

know, on a specific request put in a time

14

trigger, the code already requires compliance

15

within five years unless we determine otherwise

16

that it can come at a later date.

So even if we didn't, you

How would you approach and see if

17
18

there's the ability of these projects to now at

19

least perform to a

20

compliance whether it be they can deliver

21

50 percent in the next three years, or -- or,

22

you know, other options that you may feel

23

appropriate?
Because

24

25

to court.

I

to a certain level of

have no problem taking people

But I would expect the court to show
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1

that at least we have tried to request the

2

compliance of those projects first, before we go

3

to court.

4

now will be in charge of that housing area?

5

MR. ANDAYA:

Do you have any comments since you

Councilman, when Brian Miskae took the

6

position of Affordable Housing Coordinator, his

7

role was to -- to facilitate the permitting

8

process, and that was -- that was pretty much

9

his role.

10

The policy, the housing policies and

11

whatnot, still was the responsibility of the

12

housing -- the Director of Housing, Human

13

Concerns.

14

role, and that's what I have been doing for the

15

last month or so, has been to see where we can

16

expedite the permitting process, where is the

17

hang-ups, trying to get consensus among the

18

department heads, things like that.

19

been my role.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I take that same role.

My -- my

So that's

And that also encompasses the projects

21

that have already been approved and units are

22

owed to this County?

23
24

25

MR. ANDAYA:

If it's going through the permitting

process, then that's where I come in.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Are you also going to look at
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1

those that are not going through the permitting

2

process but are still owed to the County of

3

Maui?

4

did assist us by saying if she -- when she went

5

back and did some due diligence for us, she came

6

up with a very large number of affordable

7

housing units that have yet to have been built

8

and to fulfill conditions of land use approvals.

9

And you know, of course, certain

Because I believe at one time, Ms. Lee

10

landowners or developers have their, I guess,

11

justification to say they need more time or not.

12

But the key is, do we feel it appropriate for

13

the County to start demanding compliance of

14

these units owed us?

15

Because if we are able to get at least,

16

maybe, 50 percent of what at one time Ms. Lee

17

was able to tell us -- and I may be wrong; I

18

thought I heard 3,000 units.

19

get half of that built, 1500 units built.

20

would definitely help us -- not eliminate, but

21

alleviate some of the stress to the current

22

housing inventory.

23

So let's say we

So do you have any comments?

That

Either you

24

or Ms. Lee.

Because as you say, Ms. Lee is the

25

director, but I asked you since you have been
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1

given the task and you have accepted

2

specifically for this housing program.

3

MR. ANDAYA:

Mr. Chair, on a policy question such as

4

that, I would have to defer to the Housing

5

Director.

6

MS. LEE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

9

Mr. Chair.
Ms. Lee, if you have any comments at

this time.
MS. LEE:

Yes, a couple.
First of all, on conditional zoning,

10
11

oftentimes, and especially with project

12

districts, the Council allows for the

13

construction of affordable housing concurrently

14

with market homes.

15

other ordinance, that other general ordinance

16

that was referred to earlier.

So this would override that

17

Secondly, with regard to outstanding

18

units/ I believe I have mentioned on several

19

occasions there are only about maybe 70

20

units or so that truly owed.

21

them were on Molokai, but since then the Molokai

22

Ranch has written to us and updated us, and they

23

feel that they don't owe 60 units anymore.

24

now we are down to a much lower number.

And about 60 of

The problem is concurrency.

25
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1

units are not built, the affordables are not

2

due.

3

affordables to be built if the markets aren't

4

being built.

5

do is encourage the developers to come back to

6

the Council to make changes if necessary.

7

they feel they cannot produce the affordables at

8

the levels that they had promised, then they

9

should come back to the County Council and get

So we would not be able to demand

What we always -- what we always

If

10

those conditions revised.

11

that we can do administratively to change that.

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

And there is nothing

Let me ask this question.

13

I wish I was sitting there, but just because,

14

maybe, Riki was so nice, I guess I want to put

15

it differently, Alice.

16

And I am not specific on which projects,

17

but I know that you did give us a bunch of units

18

that perhaps was owed.

19

that Rick was

20

not trying to represent him, but I will

21

represent myself.

I think the question

Riki was representing, and I am

If people owe us and if people have fled

22
23

or may be still be in hiding r will you go after

24

these people that owe us these housing in a

25

legitimate manner and use our Corporation
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1

Counsel and laws that we have existing to get

2

'em and make them deliver, legally, with

3

whatever because --

4

MS. LEE:

If that happened, yes.

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Jo Anne.

One of the criticisms that we

7

as a County have gotten is that we require, when

8

these land use and zoning changes, you know, if

9

the projects move forward, is that, well, we

10

require this of private sector to do all this

11

affordable housing in -- because they are

12

bringing in employees, whatever it is.

13

you call it employee housing, affordable,

14

there's those different components.

Whether

But one or two, and probably more than

15
16

that, individuals in the community have said,

17

"Well, you are like the largest employer, the

18

County of Maui.

And what do you do?"

19

So how do you respond and how can we

20

respond by maybe setting either -- help, you

21

know, a different policy or a different

22

direction?

23

department can do to help facilitate housing for

24

the people that actually are our own employees

25

who are suffering like everybody else?

And are there things that your
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1

not just the hotel workers.

2

here in our own County building and actually in

3

the different areas throughout the County.

4

how would you address that through the context

5

of either the budget or something that maybe you

6

would offer legislatively?

7

MS. LEE:

It's the people

So

I would be happy to work with

8

Mr. Pontanilla on a County employee housing

9

policy.

But certainly, it would be a

10

recommendation because the Council would have to

11

make the calIon that.

12

we can do anything.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But given enough money,

Well, and that's where I kind

14

of am looking at the budget we have right now,

15

and I am looking at if there's something that is

16

specific to County of Maui employees, are the

17

programs that we are doing, then, that are

18

incorporated, if people have certain incomes

19

that are County employees, are they going to be

20

eligible for these types of programs, or would

21

most of the things that we are talking about not

22

fit for our employees?

23

MS. LEE:

We don't have any programs specifically for

24

County employees.

One of the -- because

25

primarily, we need, and our belief is that we
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1

need to first and foremost take care of the most

2

vulnerable and the most needy in the zero to

3

80 percent of income category.

4

have responsibilities to the disabled and to

5

others in dire need of housing, the victims of

6

domestic violence and so forth.

7

However, we also

And what we are trying to do, because we

8

have the overarching responsibility and

9

oversight of the continuum of housing, we have

10

the advantage of having a vantage point of

11

knowing and seeing all the various housing

12

organizations and what they are doing, and we

13

also see what developers are planning and

14

proposing.

15

And what we are trying to do now is

16

match them, match the developer to the housing

17

organization so that they won't need to rely so

18

much on County funds t which is so limited, and

19

they can rely and partner with the private

20

sector to achieve their goals for the type of

21

housing that they are pursuing, whether it be

22

for the disabled, for reintegration project, for

23

prisoners, whether it's for the homeless,

24

whether it's for the senior citizens.

25

type of housing is needed, there is a private

Whatever
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partner out there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I really appreciate that,

3

and perhaps Mr. Pontanilla, in his Committee, we

4

could talk about that, of actually getting our

5

own house in order before we start mandating all

6

this stuff to other people because I really

7

you know, I guess sometimes because you are so

8

close to it, you don't really look at things

9

that way.

But I see now that many of the people

10

in our own departments I

11

County, are really -- they are suffering just

12

like everybody else, so whatever we can do.

13

Thank you.

14
15

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:
policy?

throughout the whole

Any other questions in the

Mr. Pontanilla?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Question for Alice in

17

regards to what Jo Anne has just said.

18

County employees eligible to apply for any

19

housing that developers provide as far as

20

affordable housing based on median income?

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Are the

Yes.
I know we do have a

23

proposal right now in ordinance that's going

24

through the Planning Commissions in regards to

25

guaranteeing affordable housing.

And in the
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1

ordinance, it says that they need to provide a

2

bond in regards to affordable housing, and it's

3

either cash, land, or housing itself.

4

they don't build it within five years, then

5

they're owning up to the County.

And if

So I think it is a good bill that would

6
7

guarantee, you know, the people over here in

8

Maui County at least some housing.
Thanks, Chair.

9

10

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

11

go ahead.

12

Any other questions?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Charmaine,

Yeah, just a comment on what

13

Jo Anne brought up on the employee or how do you

14

answer the rest of the community.

15

difference is the County of Maui's business is

16

not to turn a profit, and we are not in here

17

profiting and then suffering -- and making our

18

employees suffer, or strapping them for

19

whatever.

20

between our answer, "You don't provide your own

21

housing for your own employees," that's -- we

22

are in a different category.

I think a big

I think that's the major difference

And I think that when businesses are

23
24

created, particularly you know, bigger

25

where they are hiring whatever numbers of
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1

people, we have always connected housing with

2

the building of hotels, because they create jobs

3

and you have employees that need to live

4

somewhere.

5

jobs is creating the same sort of impact on its

6

workers.

Well, any business that's creating

So I am -- you know, I am happy to see

7

8

that the State Land Use Commission is beginning

9

to recognize this and, you know, wholeheartedly

10

support what they are doing.

Because these

11

employees do have to come from somewhere.
And even if they don't come from

12

13

anywhere, if they only come from here, from

14

Maui, existing residents, this is like where do

15

your kids and your kids' kids live?

16

nobody else came in here and the doors were

17

closed, you know

18

haven't stopped having kids.

19

your children and grandchildren and

20

great-grandchildren to live with you throughout

21

your whole life?

Even if

like I said before

l

people

And do you want

I mean, there comes a point in time

22

23

where you are overcrowded yourself.

24

this is going on now because there are

25

multi-generational residences, where you have
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1

got a whole lot of ohana and extended ohana

2

under the same roof, and that will create its

3

own problems.
So you know, I believe that we are on

4

5

the right track in looking at housing

6

requirements for any of those kinds of

7

businesses that are bringing -- that have

8

employees.
If you are a one-person operation,

9

10

that's different.

11

that's creating employees and jobs, we have got

12

to figure out how to get them to participate in

13

programs to provide housing.

14

I am sorry.

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

But anyone else coming in

That wasn't a question.

No, that's okay.

I think -- I

16

think Herman and Alice should take that as food

17

to try to digest and work with this Council into

18

creating that situation.
I know, as Charmaine has stated, that

19
20

now they are tying commercial development into

21

affordable housing, which I think has been a

22

void in how we look at things in Maui County.

23

Anything else in Housing?

24

Let's move, if not, to Human Concerns,

25

and do you have a cadre of people, Alice, that
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would be_representing your department?
MS. LEE:

No, Mr. Chair l only if I can't answer the

questions that are there.

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I am sorry.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just in the Housing, and I am

9

Okay.
Back up.

sorry if I am missing this.
I am sorry

11

Concerns program -- nO

12

is Human Concerns.

14

I was looking on

Housing and Human Concerns, Human

10

13

Go ahead, Dain.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I

nothing in Housing.

Nothing for Housing?

Anything

else in Housing?
Okay.

15

We will move to Human Concerns,

16

then, and probably the biggest area that you

17

want to concern yourself with is community

18

partnerships and the grants and all the

19

different ones in your program budget that

20

starts from 9-49

21

entire list, Council Members.

1

if you want to look at that

Any opening statement, Alice?

22
23

It

MS. LEE:

Mr. Chair, Members, we, as you know

I

24

think you know -- that we have been working on a

25

Human Needs Assessment.

Last time we did that
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1

was in 1999.

And our Grants Management Division

2

has worked out an arrangement with -- well, paid

3

for, along with Maui United Way and the Hawaii

4

Community Foundation, a contract and arrangement

5

with the University of Hawaii Social Services

6

Research Institute.
We have -- as soon as we receive our

7

8

final draft of that Human Needs Assessment, we

9

will be forwarding it to you.

It was a pretty

10

extensive exercise conducting several forums,

11

14, I believe, throughout the countYI a couple

12

of time on Molokai, once on Lanai, and a couple

13

of times in Hana.

14

was done.

And then a telephone survey

15

So as soon as we get all of that

16

finalized, we will send that information to you.

17

But so far, what we have is the preliminary

18

information we received from the forums, which

19

consisted of community people, social service

20

providers, and so forth.
The priorities that they have come up

21
22

with, and if I could share them with you right

23

now, and it's not necessarily in the -- in

24

priority.

25

affordable housing, substance abuse, improving

But, first, family strengthening,
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1

the economy, education, and a safety net for

2

at-risk populations.

3

that the focus groups came up with.

These are the main areas

Just for your information, in case you

4

5

would like to prioritize some of your -- you

6

know/ your

where you allocate funding.

We have not much in the way of changes

7
8

in terms of the grants.

There's about a

9

$400/000 increase that we are looking at

10

overall, so there hasn't been a lot of change in

11

that area.

12

questions.

13

And I would be happy to answer any

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Chairman of the Human Concerns,

14

Mr. Pontanilla.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

What the

16

Director just mentioned about the needs

17

assessment for Maui County, we are going to

18

do -- we were going to do a presentation last

19

Friday in regards to that assessment, and that

20

would have given us a fairly good idea as far as

21

what are the critical areas that we should be

22

looking at.
Anyway, the question that I have is as

23
24

far as the '04 appropriations for all of the

25

organizations that we provide grants, you know
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1

one of the concerns I have is, you know, has the

2

grants been executed or not.

3

list here, and the one -- first one is I have is

4

the Hana Human Services.

5

And I do have a

Based on our 12/3/03 information, no

6

grants has been executed for the particular

7

service.

8
9
10

MS. LEE:

Can you explain?

As far as I know/ Mr. Pontanilla, all of

them have been encumbered/ all the funds have
been encumbered.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

MS. LEE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

All of them?

Uh-huh.
Fine.

Thank you, Chair.

Charmaine.
Before we get into the

16

individual grants and things, I would like to

17

ask about the 9.5 new positions, if we could get

18

an explanation.

19

page 9-10/ that show seven full-time and eleven

20

part-time positions.

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

And those budget details are on

A fuller explanation than I already gave?
That was your presentation

part, in your presentation?

24

MS. LEE:

Yeah.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

There's nothing
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further you want to add?

2

MS. LEE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Pretty explanatory.

Yes, I think so.

4

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Then you have on page 9-41 in the

5

program budget, you have an increase of 775,111,

6

increase in operations.

7

expenses or grant expenses?

8
9

MS. LEE:

Well, they are all grants.

run on air.

10

small.

11

on page 9-41?

700,000 has to be for grants.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

MS. LEE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

I am satisfied with

Any other questions?

Yeah.

The equipment expense,

the 103,500/ is that the vehicles?

20

24

Yeah.

that answer/ Mr. Chairman.

18

23

Yeah, on the program budget.

is addressing right now, in your program budget.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

This is

Members/ 9-41 is where Charmaine

17

19

Our divisions

Our operational moneys are very

12

14

Are these operating

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you.

That's all

I have in the general area.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

I will follow the same

process that Riki has been going.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you/ Mr. Chairman.
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Ms. Lee, I am looking at -- I will start

1

2

on 9-50 and 9-51, I guess.

That's a whole bunch

3

of the community partnership recipients.

4

it -- and I may ask, perhaps, to get a written

5

response in my question.

6

be after going through the two pages, and I

7

think it continues on in, I think, how you

8

package them or group them, that especially on

9

these two pages

And

And the question would

two, three, four, five, six,

10

seven, eight, nine -- almost everyone of them

11

except for 10 -- and I think there may be, you

12

know, 40 or so, 50.

13

Sorry.

I didn't count them.

Two pages full.
But out of them, ten received what I

14
15

would call noted to substantial increases while

16

most of the other ones either got notably

17

decreased or zeroed out all together.

18

notice that there's lot of -- between what we

19

did for the '03 amount to the '04 amount, if you

20

would be able to provide us just some, maybe

21

some -- it seems like it

22

folks are doing, you know, a trend or some sort

23

of policy shift, maybe.

24

maybe you can help us with some generalized

25

comments, back in writing, Mr. Chair, you know,

1S

I

a direction that you

don't know.
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just for sake of time.

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

But because there's just a lot

4

of -- a lot of the programs are going down, and

5

then some of them are like, boom, from -- as an

6

example, I mean -- and you don't have to answer.

7

,But, example, Salvation Army, 152 down to zero.

8

But then there's other ones that went from real

9

little to a lot.

And that's just one example.

10

I am sure there's a simple explanation for that

11

one.

12

all -- pretty much all the programs.

But it's occurring all the way throughout

13

So instead of us walking through every

14

single one

15

maybe some general comments and then highlight

16

some specific ones that are significant or

17

substantial.

18

MS. LEE:

I

if you can -- if you could provide

Is that possible?

That's fine.

19

mistakes?

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MS. LEE:

Mr. Kane

Oh, yeah

can I point out the

sure.

On page 9-50, Hui Malama Learning Center

22

should not be listed.

23

$180,000.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

I

I

Okay.

It was a line item of

So that's the one from

zero to 180?
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofe:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

157

1

MS. LEE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MS. LEE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

MS. LEE:

6

Right.

Exactly.

Maui Adult [ same page [ 9-50.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

MS. LEE:

10

Okay.

And there was another one like that, the

7

9

It shouldn't be there at all?

Yes.

Maui Day Care Centers [ Adult Day Care

Services [ $150[000, was also a line item.

So

that's another mistake.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MS. LEE:

Okay.

And that shouldn't have been there.

And

13

then there's a couple of little ones that don't

14

really make much difference[ but the total

15

should have been in the area of 1.1 million

16

dollars and not 1.4.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

And since you have noted

18

the real big ones -- and I appreciate you doing

19

that.

20

because it's almost 60[000[ is the Imua Family.

21

Is that one also a line item[ or is that just

22

something that -- maybe just that one you could

23

highlight for now.

24

Hui Malama Learning Center Youth Alternative

25

Education line item.

The other one that seems significant

And that's right under the

Imua Family Services.
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1

MS. LEE:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MS. LEE:

It went from zero up to 57,000.

And the rest of what you see here is a

4

function of the GRC's deliberations and

5

recommendations.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

7
8

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I will yield.

Jo Anne.

Alice, in some of these, like

10

the Big Brothers and Big Sisters, you know where

11

they went from 80,150 to 56,000, are -- is what

12

you are saying they are just going to be

13

reduced, and then they have to apply, then, for

14

the grants review for whatever remainder, or is

15

that

16

MS. LEE:

That is the grants review.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

amount.

19

grants review?

Oh , that is the grants review

So these are all the results of the

This is very disturbing.

20

Yeah.

This is

21

not -- you know, and it's not a reflection on

22

you, Alice, but I think that that's why -- I

23

think Stacey, really, having to come, then, for

24

a line item, it's like, there's something that's

25

broken down in either the communication or in
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1

the objective and the policy.

2

problem for me when I look at some of these

3

programs that just got obliterated.

4

know if you have any -- have you gotten

5

responses from the recipients?

6

MS. LEE:

And it's really a

And I don't

Yes, and they all blame me because I get

7

to -- I get to send everybody the bad news, you

8

know, signed by me, but it's really the decision

9

of the GRC.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Have some of these programs

11

actually gone out of existence as a result of

12

what happened last year?

13

MS. LEE:

Actually, I am not aware of anyone going

14

out of existence.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And I guess on the

16

other -- on the other side, I know that the

17

Mayor mentioned about going to a request for

18

proposal or request for service.

19

the trend that we may be going to in

20

consolidating some of the -- I know some of the

21

services are similar in nature.

22

direction that we are going to be going, or is

23

that not reflective of what is going on in the

24

grants review?

25

MS. LEE:

Is that also

Is that also a

The grants review -- excuse me -- the
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1

Grants Management Division has been working all

2

year on an RFP process with the youth centers,

3

and we are going to use, try that pilot project

4

this year and, hopefully, start working on a

5

pilot project for social services next year.
But the difficulty is, with limited

6
7

funds, somebody has to decide which are the core

8

services that the County is going to fund, you

9

know.

But that's a very tough decision to make.

10

Because then you are going to have -- you are

11

going to have to eliminate some agencies.

12

That's the hard part.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Have any of these, you know,

14

the nonprofit agencies actually partnered or

15

looked at partnering so that whatever resources

16

they do have they might be able to piggyback at

17

least in the delivery of those services?

18

that instead of having so many nonprofits, some

19

of which duplicate some of the services and

20

others which are really maybe just very narrow

21

in what they do, have any of them talked about

22

collaborating?

23

MS. LEE:

So

Well, Aloha House has collaborated with

24

Malama Recovery Center, you know.

25

there's only one executive director for that
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1

agency.

As you know, Boys and Girls Club.

2

other than those two agencies, I am really not

3

aware of any two or more agencies consolidating.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

But

Thank you.

Mr. Molina.
Thank you, Chairman.

If you

7

don't mind, I wanted to go back to the

8

performance measures under the Human Concerns,

9

9-20 in the program.

10

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Director Lee, I was curious

12

about your performance measure, under

13

Activity I-C.

14

checks made, you have an FY '05 projection of

15

104,200.

16

being implemented?

17

18

MS. LEE:

Total number of face-to-face

I take it this is something new that's

Face-to-face checks of -- this is the

Assisted Transportation program.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

am just curious.

21

know, I guess you just have the drivers just

22

document as they pick up the clients and then

23

make a check in the book that they --

24
25

MS. LEE:

Right.

Right.

And you

How is that going to be

I think we have done this informally all

along.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

MS. LEE:

I see.

So we are going to formalize this so that

3

these types of -- these kinds of information

4

will be documented and reported.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

So just basically an

6

additional responsibility to the person that's

7

doing the driving, then?

8

MS. LEE:

Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

I thought it was just

10

something different that they were going to have

11

to do, not out of their way, but I was concerned

12

that it might take time away from doing some

13

other responsibilities.

Okay.

And the other performance measures r on

14
15

9-22r regarding your volunteer hours, for,

16

guess

17

today we heard Member Nishiki comment about

18

seniors, more seniors volunteering around County

19

facilities or facilities that are just being

20

built.

would involve seniors.

I

And earlier

And you have an increased projection

21
22

from 90,000 to 100 000 for FY 105.

And I think

23

that's good that you are projecting getting more

24

seniors to volunteer.

25

I am just curious.

1

How are you doing that?

What are you doing to
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motivate them?
MS. LEE:

Through our RSVP program, we have a lot of

3

dedicated people there, with Dan Acosta, under

4

Robin Tanaka.

5

But it's constantly contacting people,

6

making sure that they are connected to the --

7

not only to the type of volunteer work they want

8

to do, but you know, that there are matches

9

there that make sense.

And then we try to give

10

them a lot of recognition and show them a lot of

11

appreciation.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

You are not encouraging them

13

to do any yard work or any

14

too physical or anything?

15

MS. LEE:

you know, nothing

That might be a little difficult because

16

this is all voluntary, you know, from the heart,

17

so it's -- for them to do any kind of janitorial

18

services, I don't think that might be

19

appropriate.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

Okay.

Thank you.

And Chair, if I could go back to the

22

programs itself, 9-51, Maui Food Bank went from

23

75,000 to zero.

24

Director?

25

MS. LEE:

Can you explain that one,

Which number?

Page number?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

MS. LEE:

5

6
7

Page 951, Maui Food Bank.
Program budget.
The program budget.

Maui Food Bank was a -- had a line item for

the last couple of years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.

So that was

another line item issue?

8

MS. LEE:

Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you t Chair.

10

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Pontanilla.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you t Chair.

As far as your operational budget, do

13
14

you budget dollars for like t say, conferences,

15

seminars t in regards tOt you know t Human

16

Services needs t Housing?

17

go to seminars and conferences t and we do learn

18

a lot.

19

about the past November, we went to this Human

20

Services conference on the Mainland, and the

21

drive right now is infant and child development.

22

And there's a big push.

I know most of us, we

And one of the things that we talked

And when I see on this list here, you

23
24

know, infant and child development, it surprises

25

me that there's not a whole lot of programs, you
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know, in that direction.

2
3

4

So do you budget dollars for anything
like that, seminars?
MS. LEE:

Well, yes, we do.

And we encourage every

5

division head to make available opportunities to

6

all employees to further their knowledge of, you

7

know, the latest programs and trends nationally

8

and internationally.

9

last year went to Italy.

10
11
12

13
14
15

Terry Locke, for instance,
So, yeah, we have sent

them around the world to get more information.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I was hoping only to the

Mainland.
MS. LEE:

But that wasn't paid for with County

dollars

l

right?

Or was it?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I think I sent Terry

16

some information in regards to infant and child

17

development programs that, you know, trying to

18

push on the Mainland.

19

MS. LEE:

The Santa Cruz model?

20

both of you, then.

21

it.

22

We received it from

And we are taking a look at

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank your Chair.

23

24

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Charmaine.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.
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From your needs assessment, or the needs

1

2

assessment study that carne out, will you be

3

formulating a program describing what the core

4

value or core needs are for our community, and

5

should we not be considering or would you

6

consider that those essential services types of

7

activities that are going on in our community,

8

that they become part of your budget, period, as

9

a line item or whatever, and that the GRC then

10

be used for either expansion programs or new

11

programs to address areas in other need areas

12

where we don't have an established provider?

13

Would that be something that the administration

14

would consider doing?

15

MS. LEE:

You, basically?

We have done that to a certain extent, but

16

to take it even further, I am not sure what

17

if that wouldn't cause a revolt among the

18

nonprofits, you know.

19

take a lot more than our office or our

20

department corning to that kind of conclusion,

21

because it would automatically exclude a number

22

of nonprofits.

I think it's going to

We already -- we already prioritize with

23

24

substance abuse.

That's like the number one

25

problem next to housing.

We are working -- we

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

167

1

have substance abuse.

There's funding in there,

2

in the budget.

3

is homelessness.

4

Self-sufficiency.

5

to -- we know t we need the most help.

There's -- another major problem
There's funding in there.
So those three areas, we try

Then, of course, we have housing also.

6
7

But we don't have a fund for housing,

8

necessarily.

9

little difficult without some kind of process.

10
11

But to add to that would be a

Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Well, you know, I see we have

12

come almost full circle on this way to handle

13

grants.

14

and established in the County Code that was

15

supposed to so-called take the politics out of

16

granting organizations money.

The Grants Review Committee was set up

Okay.

So they are doing their little thing

17
18

from -- I don't know what year that was started.

19

And I guess for a while, it was -- it was going

20

okay.

21

by the way, and I think the revolt was last

22

year, or the year before t when we had so many

23

organizations come in for line items because the

24

competition in Grants Review meant they weren't

25

going to get what they needed to carryon their

But now -- there's already been a revolt t
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1

programs because of the so-called ceiling that

2

was being set in the Grants Review Committee.
So anybody who had a budget and depended

3
4

on getting the money for their budget that was

5

over whatever the ceiling was -- and we hear

6

this year it's $70,000 -- they are all coming to

7

us and, guess what?

8

Grants Review Committee.

9

get away from this and put it into the hands of

We are now becoming the
And we were trying to

10

people who understood, members of our community,

11

who could understand the needs of the community

12

and value -- value the worthiness of projects.
I think we have gone a little bit off

13
14

the -- off the track in what the intention was.
But I can also, likewise, see that would

15
16

put you in a very hard position.

We need to

17

have the citizen involvement in there.
And I also know that the Grants Review

18
19

Committee makes recommendations to the Mayor.

20

But once those recommendations come out, the

21

Mayor! or anybody else, is going to be very

22

reluctant to override whatever a volunteer

23

citizens group with good hearts that spends

24

hours going through these applications -- you

25

are not going to be very popular if you tell
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1

them, "Well, you know what, I am just going to.

2

do this with these things."
But I tell you, I would much rather see

3
4

the Grants Review Committee follow a process

5

like CDBG, where you have whatever "X" amount of

6

dollars you have, and add the highest rated

7

project with the most sensible budget gets

8

funded at the level they need to carry out their

9

program.

And then you just subtract that from

10

the title, and you go to Number 2, Number 3,

11

et cetera, until the money is gone.
It might not be, you know, the

12

13

friendliest way to do it, but we should be

14

rewarding those organizations who are doing a

15

better job at carrying out the programs designed

16

to meet the needs of our community.
And I am very concerned that we are now

17

18

going to become the Grants Review Committee.

19

mean, we only heard one or two already for line

20

items.

21

had the Food Bank, Salvation Army, and a bunch

22

of them come in for line items because of this

23

very process in the Grants Review Committee.

I

And if you recall last year, Members, we

24

And I don't know, Mr. Vice-Chair, if we

25

are going to pursue this when we, you know, get
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1

more into the decision making part of this.

But

2

you know, I am already know -- prepared to hear

3

from a lot of nonprofits who are now going to

4

want to come in for a line item.
And if we are going to become the line

5

6

item people, deciding who gets what, then we had

7

better start our process earlier so we can do

8

Grants Review, line item Grants Review, just

9

like we do CDBG before the actual budget process

10

starts.
I am concerned that we have people who

11
12

are -- they are not grant writers.

They are

13

program service deliverers.

14

that organization because they care passionately

15

about the job that they do for their clients.

16

They are not professional grant writers.

17

sometimes, I think we lose a little sight of

18

that.

19

grant writer because they have to now go out for

20

grants out there in the world, where there are

21

lots more fishes swimming in that ocean.

They are there in

And

Or we force them to use money to get a

22

So you know

23

I had the concern last year.

24

need to address it this year because it is not

25

going to get better unless we have some changes

j

that is a concern of mine.
And I think we
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in what the processes are for this.
I also question what is in our County

2
3

Code right now about grants.

And if I could

4

quote part of the County Code, 3.36.160,

5

referring to the Grants Review Committee, "The

6

Committee shall review all applications for

7

grants for programs relating to human services,

8

community youth groups and culture and the

9

arts."
And we are half -- not even half.

10

We

11

are not fulfilling this totally.

12

stand as far as are we complying with the County

13

Code?

14

reviewed by the Grants Review Committee, you

15

know -- I am not saying the reason isn't good.

16

But if we have got it written in our code this

17

way, should we be following this to the letter,

18

or should we change the code?

19

some concerns that I have.

20

now.

21

So where do we

Because there are grants that are not

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I mean, those are

Well, anyway, for

And I don't know, trying -- I

22

mean, we had that same problem last year, and

23

you are probably right.

24

speak for Riki as far as what his intentions

25

are.

And I am not going to

And I am sure that all of you will give
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1

your input also, because I am sure that you have

2

been approached by many nonprofits in regards

3

to, "Can you line item this for me, or line item

4

that for me?"

And I am sure it will go on.

Did Riki give you any idea on the

5

6

concerns raised by Charmaine?

7

going to probably have a discussion on it.
Tamara, go ahead.

8

9

I am sure we are

MR. KOLLER:

Thank you, Mr. Vice-Chair.

I believe

10

that discussion will probably happen more in the

11

decision making; however, I do want to point out

12

that I believe the -- and I will get the code

13

reference.

14

about the Grants Review Committee, but I believe

15

there's a caveat in there that it does not

16

preclude other grants that the Councilor the

17

Mayor may issue.

I think the code reference does talk

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MR. KOLLER:

Okay.

And I think there was a question earlier

20

regarding a copy of the Grants Review report.

21

believe that we received that.

22

to Housing and Human Concerns Committee.

23

that we receive it like in June, after.

24

the Grants Review process is not complete for

25

this year, perhaps the Director can explain to

I think it goes
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1

the Committee what that process is, the timing

2

as to when applications are due, because I don't

3

believe the applications are -- the due date has

4

been reached yet.

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

MS. LEE:

7

Alice.

Thank you, Mr. Chair, Tamara, and Members.
The -- we did have an application

8

deadline of March 25th and everybody, all the

9

nonprofits are well aware of that because this

10

is routine.

11

also provide them a workshop which explains to

12

everyone in every major area, region, you know,

13

how to fill out your application and all the

14

deadline dates and so forth.

15

They do this every year.

And we

The -- there was a deadline of

16

April 29th for the GMD screening process,

17

April 5th for applications to go to the GRC.

18

But we do have a slight problem this year where

19

we believe we are going to have to open up the

20

application process again.

21

What happened was weI in our

22

application, required everybody to follow the

23

priorities.

24

As I told you! the information from the study

25

didn't arrive yet.

Well, the priorities weren't ready.

So because of that, we are
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1

going to have to reopen the application process

2

and change all the deadlines because the initial

3

deadline for the information from the GRC on

4

funding recommendations was supposed to be the

5

week of May 24th, just before you meet first

6

on -- I don't know when your first reading is,

7

but it was supposed to hit between first and

8

second reading, so that you would have an idea

9

of how the recommendations came out.
But now t with this little glitch that we

10
11

have, it's going to push back all the deadlines

12

and we may not be able to meet that one.

13

going to still try.

We are

We always want to try and get you the

14
15

information before second and final reading

16

because we feel that although, you know, you may

17

not like it, it's the only recourse that the

18

nonprofits have, and there's no second chance.

19

You are it.

20

information before second and final.

So we try to get you that

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Charmaine, go ahead.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I am just

23

wondering, maybe I can't -- you don't have

24

anything to do with the GRC.

25

independent group.

They are an
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1

But if there's something where if the

2

GRC would rank the proposals and focus on the

3

budget to deliver the services to make sure that

4

the budgets are in line with whatever, and that

5

that ranking be sent to you or to the Mayor, and

6

then the money is assigned, rather than them

7

feeling responsible for, you know, we have 42

8

applications, so we divide the number of dollars

9

we have by 42, so everybody can get a little so

10

everybody is happy and nobody is mad at the

11

Grants Review Committee members.

12

So maybe that part of the process, if we

13

just change that part, then put the onus on the

14

back of, like, the Mayor.

15

he is there.

16

decisions.

17

people who don't get grants from us, they are

18

not happy.

19

hard decisions, too.

20

I mean, that is why

You know, make those hard
I mean, we do it here, too.

The

But we have to make some of those

So perhaps that would help the Grants

21

Review Committee and help the organizations.

22

But what that means for the Grants Review

23

Committee is they really have to look at the

24

budgets associated with each application to make

25

sure there is no fat in there or padding or
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1

whatever.

You know, "You say you are going to

2

do this, do this.

3

money?"

And can you do it with that

4

"Yes."

5

And you know, I think I was explaining

6

to you on one of the breaks the process we went

7

through with the federal grant applications.

8

mean, we got grilled on every single dime that

9

was in our budget request.

I

And if we didn't

10

have backup documentation for those numbers, it

11

got cut.

12

$300,000, if we couldn't justify 75,000 of it,

13

we didn't get it.

14

that they could buy into.

So where we might have asked for

We got what we justified and

15

And I can see that same process, and

16

maybe that's the hang-up part of GRC is that

17

they are going to feel bad because they don't

18

give everybody at least something.

19

know.

I don't

If that's something we need to pursue,

20
21

we may need to ask our attorney how do we do

22

that in the

23

we do something like that in the current

24

ordinance.

25

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

in the current ordinance, or can

You know, Charmaine, I -- I know
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1

you are attempting to try to make something

2

better, and I applaud you.

3

in the true sense of this whole process[ Members

4

and people out there, you know, because I see

5

some of you out there, you are a line item.

6

whether you have approached the Administration

7

or the Council, that's how it is reflected in

8

here.

9

existing.

Okay.

However, in the

And

So that's a given already that's

So then Charmaine referenced, oh, we are

10
11

trying to take the politics out of this, and so

12

we now created this so-called GRC.

13

of a sudden, we hear people making negative

14

comments, and so then the Council investigates

15

on how that whole process that they are holding

16

is.

17

check and see if that whole application process

18

is, the way we like it because we hear from

19

disgruntled people, you know.

20

a tough one.

And then all

And then, you know, maybe we better go

And it's -- it's

And then finally, you, the Council

21
22

Members also, if you have something that you

23

want to give to a specific nonprofit group.

24

make an appearance in the

25

and if you are successful in getting five votes,

during the budget,
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you get your line item ln it.
So, this whole process, Charmaine, is

2

3

really highly political anyway, and that's

4

that's the way it is.

5

try to fool anybody.

So you know/ let's not

Although/ now we want to try to make it

6
7

better/ and I don't have the answers.

And you

8

know, it will come to the nine of us again, with

9

Chair Hokama here, and you know, I don't know,

10

you know/ your suggestion about/ "Well, let's do

11

it the way block grant is done."

12

know r maybe, but I don't think that -- well, I

13

don't know.

Well, you

I shouldn't speak so negatively.

14

You know! if we are going to accept that

15

process and then if we are going to handle that,

16

you know, and that whole application, I guess

17

the question should be do you want to do it,

18

Council Members, you know.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

21

recess.

22

come back.

23

recess.

No.

So anyway, it's time for a

We will take a recess until 3:15 and
Thank you.

(Gavel.)

24

RECESS:

3:00 p.m.

25

RECONVENE:

3:24 p.m.

Meeting in

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04
1

179

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel.)

We shall bring the Budget

2

and Finance meeting of the 18th of March back in

3

order.

4

First, thank you very much, Mr. Nishiki,

5

for assuming the duties of the Chair for a short

6

time.

7

area.

I appreciate your leadership in that

Members, I have been informed that we

8
9

are in the area of Human Concerns, community

10

partnership grants.

11

or questions in this area, Members?

12

Ms. Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

Is there further discussion

Chair, I just actually had a

comment to share, and

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I

hope you

Please.
-- will indulge me because I

17

have been hearing in the community and through

18

various things that are coming out and in, and

19

even today one of the testifiers alluded to

20

the -- to a -- quoted as a fact, almost, that

21

the cuts that were made to grants for social

22

services were drastic.
And I would hope that, in the future,

23
24

when people come forward and they want to talk

25

about something like that, it would be really
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1

nice if they had some numbers that they could

2

pass out and show us to demonstrate exactly what

3

they are trying to communicate.
,I

4

do happen to have some of the numbers

5

between last year and -- last year and this

6

yea~,

7

service grants except for culture and the

8

arts -- I didn't count them as social service,

9

and if you want me to count them, the number is

about the cuts.

And all of the social

10

even bigger, but I took out the culture and arts

11

grants.

12

The total in Fiscal Year '03 was

13

$5,657,233.

What the Council approved as its

14

final budget in the same categories was

15

5,837,733, which is an increase of $180,500.
Now, if we were

16

if we count in the

17

culture and art grants, it went from 180,000 in

18

Fiscal Year '03 to·250,OOO in Fiscal Year '04,

19

which is another $70,000 increase.

20

So I am not sure who is spreading the

21

word out there that we have cut these social

22

service areas drastically.

We have not.

23

Now/ in certain categories, in the GRC

24

area, that did go down, yes, in that GRC area.

25

So if they are going to talk about GRC, fine.
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1

But realize that we took a lot of things that

2

were in GRC before and line itemed them.

3

had some big-ticket items that were no longer in

4

Grants Review Committee but were a line item.

So we

The objective of the programs is still

5
6

to meet the social service needs in our

7

community, and I believe by the numbers, we have

8

shown this community that we have supported in

9

excess of 2003.

10

was an excess.

Maybe not a big excess, but it
We did not cut these programs.

So I would hope that as we go out -- I

11

12

am sure that in Kihei, we are going to hear

13

about this.

14

that say what was given Fiscal Year '03 and

15

Fiscal Year '04.

So I will carry with me the figures

And if someone has some figures that are

16
17

different than mine, I would be happen to go

18

over it.

19

straight out of the budget ordinances for Fiscal

20

Year '03 and Fiscal Year '04.

21

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

22
23
24
25

Maybe mine are wrong, but I took them

CHAIR HOKAMA:
questions?

Thank you.

Any other comments or

Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Before the break, we were

talking about prioritization in some of the
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1

grant areas.

And I think that because the State

2

budget is done the way it is, we have Grants

3

Review, and now there will be, apparently, a

4

delay in some of the

5

that we would have about who is going to get

6

what.

-~

I guess the knowledge

And also, sometimes other funding

7

8

sources, when people go before Grants Review or

9

even when they are coming before us, a lot of

10

times agencies or nonprofits will come to us,

11

they will come to Grants Review, hoping that

12

they can get enough money to continue their

13

programs.

14

through.

15

line item, there's a situation that could

16

conceivably occur where a person or a nonprofit

17

could end up getting both a line item, and then

18

having their funds either approved through the

19

State or another funding source, putting them

20

actually above what their projected budget was,

21

you know, with the presentation before the

22

Council.

Sometimes those other grants do come
And a lot of times, if we put in a

So what I would like to see is some kind

23
24

of a provision that if the grant moneys do come

25

through or if funding sources come through in
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofe:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

183

1

excess of what the budget was that they actually

2

presented before us, that there be some kind of

3

a proviso or a caveat that allows other people

4

who were standing in line, who didn't get, to

5

then eligible for that money.
And I don't know how this would be

6
7

achieved, but put some kind of a condition on

8

each one of those line items that says if you

9

get your money from, whether it is the State,

10

the federal government, wherever, that you

11

canlt, in other words, double dip.

12

amount that you received results in you going in

13

excess of what your budget was that you

14

presented before the Council, that that money,

15

then, does not necessarily have to be given out

16

to your organization.

That if that

Because -- it is not because they are

17

18

doing it in a deceptive way.

It is just because

19

of when they find out.

20

that

21

line items r or if it's through Grants Review r

22

that they end up getting money in excess of what

23

their projected budget would be, that then money

24

then goes to the next worthy organization

25

because that r to me, is more fair.

So if there's some way

either it's on our part if we are doing
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1

certainly I am sure would be appreciated by a

2

nonprofit, but in a lot of situations, you know,

3

it's at least spreading some of the resources

4

that we have amongst those agencies and

5

nonprofits that maybe didn't do quite as well on

6

the priority list.
So that's just a thought.

7

I don't know

8

how we will achieve it, but I just want other

9

nonprofits, whether it's us or Grants Review, to

10

think about how we could achieve that and look

11

at that, maybe, as consideration for an option

12

during this budget process.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for your comment.
Members

14

I

more than likely in a line

15

item, you would need a Budget Ordinance to

16

revise the appropriate appendix as well as

17

adjust the numbers.

18

budgetary process.

19

taking a specific line item money and then

20

redirecting those funds not

21

used.

22

your example, Ms. Johnson, it would be a very

23

complete budget process again.

24

for your suggestion.

So it will be a formal
There's no shortcuts around

that will not be

I will not use the word surplus

Anyone else, Members?

25

(808)524-2090

Fax:

but in

But thank you

Questions or
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comments in their community partnership grants?
I was able to catch the end portion of

2
3

this division area, prior to the recess

4

conducted by Mr. Nishiki -- and again, thank you

5

very much, sir.

6

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

VICE-CHAIRNISHIKI:

9

concerns.

If not
I had a question.

Yes, Mr. Nishiki.
And I -- I just have some

You know, what Charmaine brought out in

10
11

regards to how much we give I think is

12

important.

13

community has grown, and it is probably one of

14

the fastest growing communities, probably,

15

nationally.

16

social problems also have grown.

17

know if because we are such a visitor-oriented

18

community things even manifest, socially,

19

quicker because now you have got certain kind of

20

jobs that are created, and therefore cost of

21

living probably gets affected.

22

But I guess the question is our

With that growth, I am sure that
And I don't

And I guess, Alice, the question,

23

perhaps -- because if anybody hears it, you

24

hear, you hear it.

25

we have, have you seen social concerns also grow

In this growth pattern that
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1

in the same percentage as population growth?

In

2

other words, have they manifested to whereby we

3

have economic development, we have jobs, but

4

also we have problems.

5

glaring at you these days to, whereby -- I

6

remember way back when, you know, 20 years ago,

7

we hardly had anything for social services, and

8

all of a sudden, bang, it's growing.

Are these problems

And I was reading the list today, and I

9

10

was going,

11

this, and then their motto on the side is,

12

whatever it means, maybe in Hawaiian or

13

whatever.

14

path or whatever it is.

II

Wow , I don't know.

II

This one says

I don't know what it is.

Maybe their

But have you seen that necessity also?

15
16

Because nobody is dealing with it.

Obviously,

17

government isn't, so we are giving it to social

18

services, and we hear that it's cheaper for them

19

to deal with it because they are nonprofits,

20

question mark?

21

this community?

Is that what is occurring in

I mean, you know, we need to deal with

22
23

this.

These are problems and somebody's got to

24

deal with itt so the non -- we have sort of

25

decided that the nonprofits are.
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And then, of course, Riki and some of us

1

2

will also say, "Hey, it is a State problem."

3

But Maui County has been probably, you know,

4

very generous, but only because I think as

5

leaders we see that we need to take care of

6

those problems, and we can't close our eyes

7

because we are going to have a phone call and

8

your ears can't close.
So Alice, I mean, can you tell us, as

9

10

decision makers?

11

And yes, you need to put money in it.

12

MS. LEE:

Do we need to deal with that?

Yes, Mr. Nishiki, we all need to deal with

13

this problem.

All the social problems that we

14

have because it's

15

citizens.

16

all of us sitting here today are very lucky.

17

came from a time when we didn't have all these

18

social ills, but now we do.

19

that is not how we want to leave the earth, all

20

of these things unaddressed, you know, leaving

21

all these problems behind.

22

resources are so limited, what we have to do is

23

recognize that we must establish priorities.

24

have to be strong enough to establish priorities

25

and fund them appropriately.

it's affecting our

And if we want to make sure -- see,

And that -- and

But because our
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And it's hard.

1

It's hard to do that r

2

because you leave some people out.

And

3

secondly, you don't get to -- you don't get to

4

solve all the problems.

5

difficulty.

6

of us face.

That's -- that's a

And that's the frustration that all

But at least we are doing everything in

7

8

our power to address the priorities, the highest

9

problems, the top problems of our community.

10

And as you know, substance abuse is ripping this

11

community apart.

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, and I just wanted to

13

verify this, because you know why, Mr. Chairman r

14

personally, I -- I see it.

15

drive from where I live in Kihei, along that

16

oceanfront, and then along by Maui Electric and

17

then get over here.

18

I work, sometimes at Suda Store, I see it also

19

whereby there are

20

you guys don't see it, but they are like a

21

community of homeless people living in the bush.

22

Okay.

23

needles.

But then

and then where

let me tell you.

A lot of

And with it, my daughter has seen
Okay.
I drive by South Kihei Road, along just

24
25

And I -- all I do is

before Maui Electric and I look on the side of
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1

the road, every morning, and I see cars, all the

2

way, parked.

3

evening! these cars are gone.

4

these people probably go to work.

5

just hanging around in the cars and sleeping

6

there.

And then when I come back in the
Okay.

And -- and

They are not

And why I say that is because I have

7

8

never seen this before.

And now I know there's

9

people that don't have homes.

We see people now

10

that even work that have to use that Food Bank

11

to get food and

12

necessities.

13

our community today, folks.

14

these kinds of people.

and two very basic

I am sorry, but, you know, this is
You know, we have

And I am sure that it's not through

15
16

their wanting

17

the bushes and go to work or sleep in their car?

18

I mean, who wants to sleep in

But yet, this is the very thing that I

19

cannot close my eyes, you know, and I see it.

20

And yeah, I may be a cop-out because I don't go

21

talk to these people.

22

decision maker today, and I'm going, some people

23

don't have basic things, food and shelter.

24

Clothing, they have.

But you know here I am, a

But, I guess I -- you know, in this

25
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1

budget, now, I am going, "Well, you know,

2

Mr. Chairman

3

challenge.

4

coming.

5

to us, I went, "Wow."

6

It really did.

what do we do?"

I

This is a

And I don't blame the nonprofits for

I mean, when I heard Stacey today talk
It impacted me, you know.

And so it's not hidden anymore.

7

It's

8

like, when the sun rises, there they are.

And I

9

just want to make it clear that I can no longer

10

in good conscience just close my eyes to these

11

people anymore.

12

can facilitate it.

13

this budget process, I think that this is one

14

segment that we really got to deal with, and I

15

don't know.

16

challenge.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I don't know how government
But I, you know -- and in

We all have to take up this
But thank you, Alice.

Anyone else?

I am done.

If not, then I would say

18

that Mr. Nishiki has verified the challenge.

I

19

ask that you be motivated by this challenge to

20

work with one another to come up with options of

21

various solutions.

22

financial resources, some takes positions to

23

help effectuate programs to address those

24

challenges.

Some, of course, takes

So I ask that you all remain open to the

25
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1

demands of the community.

2

friends, your neighbors, and your -- you know,

3

we are all responsible for one another.

4

shall accept that responsibility, and we will do

5

our best to address it within our resources.

6

Anything else in this area, Members?

7

10

11

So we

Thank you.
Let us move on to Animal Management.

8

9

They are your

Ms. Lee, do you have any comments in this
division area, please?
MS. LEE:

No, Mr. Chair.

This is clearly the

12

expertise of the lady sitting in the audience.

13

We manage this contract, but that's pretty much

14

all we do.

15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Thank you very much for your

comments.
Budget Director, any comments from you

17

18

Okay.

at this time?
MR. AGSALOG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The Director and

20

Deputy Director had came and presented a request

21

from the Animal Management Humane Society, but

22

our budget at this time can only afford to

23

increase their budget by 10,000.

24

putting a proviso for 5,000 for Molokai.

25

it's almost the same budget as they had last

And still,
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1

year/ a 10/000 increase.

2

Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That's all I can say,

Budget Director, thank you.

Members/ it is on 9-54 and 55 of your

4
5

program/ and 9-25 in your details.

On your

6

details/ it does say Maui Humane Society

7

Services.

8

was very -- allowed very wide parameters in the

9

discussion and questions this morning extending

We did have testimony/ and the Chair

10

beyond the normal testimony/ but I thought the

11

questions to Ms. Bouchard and Ms. Anderson was

12

very relevant for you to receive information/

13

since we are reviewing that area of the budget

14

this afternoon.
Mr. Nishiki/ do you have questions or

15
16

comments?

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Alice/ I guess what I heard from you

18
19

today/ Mr. Chairman/ I think it concerns me

20

because/ you know/ people need some parity.

21

know in our office/ Council Services

22

our people are compensated -- whenever the union

23

gets a raise, then they get a raise, you know.

24

Some of them that have no ability, like say some

25

of our legal team/ we try to equate it to
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Corporation Counsel.
In the Humane Society's case, I don't

2
3

know who makes that policy decision, but if it

4

is us now, because Danny says, "Well, we have

5

only given

6

5,000 is the additional budget," and yet we have

7

heard the members say, representing the Humane

8

Society, that whatever they get paid is what it

9

is.

5 / 000

for Molokai

l

and the other

Within the State system, retirement

10
11

system and everything else r all of us that are

12

fortunate to work for Maui County

13

retirement that gives into the system.

14

get a medical plan after ten years that you

15

have, you know, for the remainder.

16

everything is tied into

17

and what they get.

l

I

you get a
You also

So

perhaps, civil service

I don't know how our EM now is, but

18
19

maybe that's one that

20

raises given also.

we used to tie it into!

I think we need to just look at where

21
22

these people are with medical, with retirement.

23

And again, if we consider them to be a part of

24

our government and our community and how we

25

compensate them.

And that's all I can ask.
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1

You know, and maybe I should ask you at

2

this point, Danny, do you -- how do you consider

3

raises for this segment of a group?

4

it's -- if it's not -- if it's like the

5

nonprofits, then we don't have any say.

6

is -- is there some formula that you use for

7

these people?

8

civil service or if they have health or

9

retirement system or whatever.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MR. AGSALOG:

But

I don't know if they fall into

Do they?

Budget Director.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
And I will just answer what I have

12

13

And if

learned since I have been in the County.
It is my understanding that we have, as

14
15

a County, we have a responsibility for Animal

16

Management.

17

how far or who will control the Animal

18

Management.

To the extent of that, I don't know

My understanding, Mr. Chairman, is that

19
20

we have a contract with Humane Society, and I

21

think for them to pay their animal controllers,

22

I don't think we should be the one mandating

23

that type of management decisions since we are

24

asking them to perform services at a price that

25

we can afford.
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So I don't know who would make that

1

2

decision as far as what their salary will be or

3

what level they should be and what retirement

4

they should get.
I think it should be a decision, I

5
6

think, from their management because I don't

7

think we should manage their people.

8

understanding, Mr. Chair.

That's my

And also, the Human Concerns have been

9

10

very, very good trying to manage this particular

11

program.

12

discussions who should manage the contract of

13

the Animal Management.

14

learning all this regulations that we need to

15

take care, and we have a mandate that we have to

16

have some sort of animal control.

And I know at some point, we had

And since I'm still

And this contract for Humane Society is,

17
18

my understanding, is just for the island of

19

Maui, not include Lanai nor Molokai because we

20

have some part-time enforcement in those other

21

islands.

22

all the -- the Animal Managements that we have

23

in the county.

24

research some more and find out what -- where

25

are we at with it.

But I am not very, very familiar with

And if it needs so,

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Of c :

( 8 0 8) 5 2 4 - 2 0 9 0

Fax:

I

could

Inc.

(8 08 ) 52 4 - 25 96

BF 03/18/04

That's all, Mr. Chair.

1

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Nishiki.

3

4

196

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, that's all I had,

5

Mr. Chairman.

6

is it our responsibility?

7

maybe it is the Humane Society's as far as, you

8

know, determining wages.

9

want it to be left the stone unturned when we

10

I mean, yeah, are we going to -And if it's not, then

But I -- I just don't

deal with this, Danny.
I mean, is that the Administration's

11
12

statement, that it should be left to the Humane

13

Society to determine what they get paid despite

14

that we give money?

15

MR. AGSALOG:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MR. AGSALOG:

Well -- Mr. Chair.
Budget Director.
I think that's where, when the Mayor

18

was having this idea of pay for services, that

19

we get the RFP that he was describing at the

20

middle of the year last year.

21

privy to those meetings since, and I think in

22

a -- in a -- when we do a contract, I don't

23

think that we should mandate anyone to pay them

24

unless we could pay, you know.

25

them the money to pay, if we mandate them.

I have not been

We should give
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1

But I think if we have a contract with

2

them, it's up to them to implement the essence

3

of the contract.

4

days' enforcement, they should man that seven

5

days no matter what, you know.

6

if that contract is not enough to do it, you

7

know, they shouldn't sign the contract.

8

my thinking.

If we ask them to do seven

But, you know,

That's

9

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

10

other Members.

11

needs addressing if, you know, we determine that

12

we want some control over management of animals

13

and everything else.

14

other Members.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

17

Anyway, I leave it up to the
I mean, this is a segment that

I just want to hear from

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, one question

18

regarding -- I am looking at program highlights,

19

page 9-55, with the computers, I guess they have

20

new computers for the organization and they are

21

awaiting the software to improve and

22

professionalize services.
What aspect of improvement are we

23
24

looking at to improve the services within the

25

Humane Society?

In other words, I guess
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1

basically, what, is this software for?

2

it improve things there?

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

How will

Let me first ask the Department if

4

they are able to answer, or if they prefer a

5

representative of the Humane Society to provide

6

that answer, Mr. Molina.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. ANDAYA:

Sure.

Department?
The Maui Humane Society approached us

10

and wanted to update their computers and their

11

software.

12

for -- I mean! working for some time now with

13

antiquated equipment.

14

that they would be more efficient if they had

15

these computers and software.

Apparently, they had been working

And so -- and they felt

16

And so that's what we did.

17

these specialized software and equipment.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

MR. ANDAYA:

20

21

We bought

So you bought

And -- I am sorry.

And they are for

licensing and permits and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

So you do have the

22

software already?

23

software?

24

you have the computers, but they are waiting to

25

purchase the software.

You did purchase the

Because I know it says in here that

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 03/18/04

1

199

MR. ANDAYA:

No, not yet.

We have approved it, but

2

we are still awaiting the software and

3

computers.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And this is to improve

their licensing, I guess?

6

MR. ANDAYA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mm-hmm, licensing and permits.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

9

10

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

11

Alice -- Ms. Lee, I am sorry.

12

The work that the Humane Society does,

13

if it gets to the point when they look at it and

14

they say it is not cost effective, too many of

15

our people are put in jeopardy for various

16

circumstances, they come to us over and over

17

again for help with personnel and expansion

18

programs, say, and they say we just can't do it

19

anymore.

It now becomes our responsibility.
So as far as the Department is

20
21

concerned, this is the more cost-effective means

22

of addressing this particular County issue, by

23

having the Humane Society do it?

24

MS. LEE:

Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And the Department would be,
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1

therefore, supportive of the increases, say, for

2

example, of the needed two more officer

3

positions?

4
5

6

MS. LEE:

We always support them, but we are not the

decision makers.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

So, I think what I am

7

trying to say is, like, you know, we hear them

8

come up and lobby us and say, you know, "We

9

need, we need."

And I am just waiting for the

10

Department to saYI we substantiate that need

11

because if they don't do it, we going to do it,

12

and it's not cost effective for us to do it at

13

this point because the entity already exists.

14

MS. LEE:

Mr. Mateo, I think if you can find the

15

funding, sure, you know.

16

support -- you know you can provide them the

17

requests that they are asking for.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

20
21

22

Hopefully, you can

Thank you, Ms. Lee.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I think it's difficult for

23

the Department to answer some of the more

24

technical questions, but let me just ask a

25

question that I know the -- I

am hoping the
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Budget Director can answer.

2

What was the total amount of the request

3

that the Humane Society made to your Department?

4

And if you don't have that, I would ask that the

5

applicant give us that.

6

MS. LEE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MS. LEE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10
11

We have it.
You do?

We don't have it.
Mr. Chair, could I please get

that information from the applicant?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

We will be happy to request that

12

information, and we will -- upon receiving, we

13

will disseminate among all Committee Members.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And then, you know,

15

any justification as to why they require that

16

amount of money.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18
19

Thank you.

Thank you.
One second.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

Mr. Kane?

Thank you, Chair.

I am interested in three areas and that

21

perhaps can be incorporated into Member

22

Johnson's request.

23

testimony this morning, I am interested in

24

strengthening the existing six employees, the

25

moneys! and I heard -- and I will just throw out

From what I heard in the
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1

a dollar amount -- approximately five dollars

2

more per hour, which I am ballparking for 40

3

hours a week, and not looking at overtime or all

4

that kind of stuff.
I am looking at about a ballpark

5
6

$65,000, for six people, $40 a week, getting

7

approximately $5 more added to their pay.
I am looking at the truck replacement of

8

9

$25,000.

And I think the third thing that I was

10
11

interested in asking for information was having

12

them open back up from the -- taking off those

13

two days and opening them back up.
I also understand that they have a

14
15

highlight here of cutting back of 30 percent,

16

and that they have managed to maintain services

17

to the public.

18

numbers that would represent having them open

19

back up two days a week, what that would take as

20

far as their staffing, as well as the truck

21

replacement, and increased pay for the existing

22

six people.

23

responded to so that we can look at that as our

24

options for this program.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I am interested in seeing

And I would like to have that

Okay.

We shall incorporate that
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1

request.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares?
I would like to see some

5

figures on what it would cost the County to run

6

this program.

7
8
9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Shall we base that on the same

assumptions that the contract is procured?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Yes.
We shall try and do our best to

11

get an estimation as described by the parameters

12

of the RFP in the contract.
Mr. Pontanilla.

13
14

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Question for the Budget Director.

15

In

16

regards to Molokai, the animal control officer

17

on that island, is he a County employee or do we

18

have a contract with him also?

19

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Director.
My understanding is a part of the

22

police department in Molokai, a half-time

23

position.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

MR. AGSALOG:

Half-time position?

That's my understanding, Mr. Chair.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

What I want to request from the animal

2
3

control people, Maui Humane Society, is that --

4

and, you know! I really do want to support the

5

increase as far as the employee count for animal

6

control officers.

7

the addition of the

8

control officer, in addition to a 12 percent

9

increase in their pay, as well as premium times

10
11

But my take is that in doing
mine is one more animal

for overtime hours based on seven employees.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Staff, you understand the question by

12

Mr. Pontanilla?

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.
Thank you.

Thank you.
I would think! Members! that you would

15
16

also need to be informed before you make your

17

decision, is we shall include in that request,

18

Staff, all revenue generators from licenses for

19

animals -- which is my concern, because

20

basically we only ask dog owners to pay

21

spay/neuter programs, any other source of

22

revenue that goes into the program, and then at

23

what level is the subsidy.
Ms. Lee, would you know if all those

24

25

fees that is collected for dog licenses and
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1

whatnot, is that into the general fund, or goes

2

back to this Animal Management program?

3

MS. LEE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

It's a special fund.
It's a special fund.

Okay, Staff.

7

special fund.

8

Okay.

10

Thank

you.

6

9

Okay.

Let's go review the

Any other questions?

Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, just what Joe had asked,

11

that Molokai position is a half-time position.

12

I am just curious what that half-time position

13

pays under government.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

details.

16

you look under the Molokai district or Lanai

17

district, you will see attached

18

warden, I believe, you would see an SR-8, salary

19

range classification, it's on page 16-28.

20

Molokai District 5.

21
22

We can look it up in the budget
It would be by the district.

I

So if

under dog

It is

Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I

I just want Staff to get

23

that information, and whether that person

24

receives

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Lanai on page 16-23 is an SR-8 under
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half time.

2

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chair.

3

MS. KOLLER:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MR. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.
Tamara.
I was just going to say, that is one of

6

the redacted items because of confidentiality.

7

We don't have that in the copy that is available

8

for the public.

9

today from the Budget Chair that we have a

We do -- you received a memo

10

confidential copy that includes all items, and

11

that can be reviewed according to the OCS

12

confidentiality policy, which is through the

13

Committee secretary.

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

I will just wait, and

15

when we have this discussion, I will just

16

can -- I can get all that information.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

we

And what I will allow the staff to

18

tell you, though, is in the SR-8 from A, Step A

19

to whatever we go to, K, L, what would be the

20

range of salary, please, from entry to the

21

highest step for an SR-8?

22

MR. KOLLER:

SR-8, from what level?

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MR. KOLLER:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Step A.
The Step A, the hourly rate is $10.14.
And at the highest?
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MR. KOLLER:

And the highest is $15.60.

Step -- just

2

for a reference, Step E is 11.87, and Step F is

3

12.33.

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

And is there also a benefits

5

package that comes with it, if they are

6

full-time, like paid vacation, sick leave,

7

health insurance, retirement?

8
9

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We will verify the information,

Mr. Nishiki, before we say anything that may not
be accurate.

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

MR. AGSALOG:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MR. AGSALOG:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Chair.
Mr. Agsalog.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I just want to

15

correct what I mentioned earlier, that the

16

Molokai is a full-time position, not a half-time

17

position.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

It is a full-time position, Molokai.
Thank you very much.

Okay.

Other questions?

Let me work

20

down because everybody will have their fair

21

opportunity.

22

Mr. Molina?

23

Mr. Kane?

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Mr. Mateo?

Ms. Johnson?

Are the duties of the dog warden

for Molokai and Lanai the same as what they have
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1

here?

2

what the duties are, or the responsibilities?

3
4

5
6

And if not, can we have a comparative on

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We will forward to personnel services

a job description.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Mr. Chair.

Aw, shucks.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

I had a second point, too,

We can return

l

Mr. Kane.

Thank you.

I am sorry.

Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

For Alice or maybe for Maui Humane

11
12

Society in regards to vehicle replacement

13

policy, if there's one in the contract, on

14

replacements.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

MS. LEE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18
19

Ms. Lee, if you please.

I think they should come and answer that.
State your name for the record,

please, your organization and your title.
MS. BOUCHARD:

Yes, my name is Jocelyn Bouchard.

20

am Executive Director of the Maui Humane

21

Society.

22

vehicle replacement is 80 to 100,000 miles.

And the current recommendation for

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Regardless of age of vehicle?

24

MS. BOUCHARD:

Correct.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So it could be one year old with
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1

$80 r OOO miles and you would ask for a new

2

vehicle.

3

MS. BOUCHARD:

Yeah, because of the down timer after

4

they have that many miles r what we have

5

experienced in the past is down time with the

6

vehicle r as I think somebody else was explaining

7

in their department.

8

our use.

9

road r they are not able to do their job.

10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So we don't have it for

And if our officers aren't out on the

This is based on a preventativ3e

maintenance program?

12

MS. BOUCHARD:

That's my understanding t yes.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Can you verify that for uS t please.

14

MS. BOUCHARD:

Absolutely.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

16

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Ms. Tavares r I skipped you.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Do you

have any questions as regards this area?

20

24

Thank you t Chair.

Okay.

No.
Anyone else?

Mr. Nishiki?

No.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Mateo?

Let's get

down to Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I know Mr. Agsalog, Director
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1

Agsalog was talking about the issue of mandates

2

on K.

3

looking at a consideration or a proposal that

4

dealt with putting increased money, and we

5

proviso'd it to go specifically towards

6

increasing the pay, would there be objections on

7

you folks, as the contractual service entity

8

to -- would that -- would that provide

9

objections on your side if we said, "You know

If, as part of our options, we were

10

what, if we increase this, but it has to go

11

specifically to this," would that be a problem?

12

MS. BOUCHARD:

No, that would not be a problem.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

14

one I thought about.

15

you.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

That was the

Thank you, Chair.

Thank

And also, I think it would be fair

17

since in the testimony it was referenced, Staff,

18

let us try and get the appropriate State statute

19

regarding authorization of the responsibilities,

20

either to the County or to a game -- Animal

21

Management program.

Okay.

22

Any further in this area, Members?

23

Yes, Mr. Kane.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I am sorry.

I didn't get -- I

heard you say game management animal program?
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am sorry.

I meant animal.

We do

have a Game Management program but that's for

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Feral goats and excess deer.

Yes.

I wanted to also find out

8

that, because of these issues, once you learn

9

what the parameters of enforcement are, if we

10

would have to do all the duties that, let's say,

11

they are currently performing when we are doing

12

an approximation of what it would cost us to do,

13

if that would be a police officer category?

14

Because I am not sure.

15

they do have the police officers where it's

16

enforcement and different things, if that would

17

be a requirement.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In some jurisdictions,

I am not sure.

We would need to find out.
And the other thing is with

20

regard to the fines, when there are fines paid,

21

it is my understanding that these all go to the

22

State.

23
24
25

That we don't get them.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And that's why we will review the

appropriate statute.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And if it's possible to -- to
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1

look at options of making a recommendation, or

2

if we can do it within our County statute,

3

perhaps, increasing the fines for some of these

4

offenses so that even at the State level, that

5

at least they would have more money and we could

6

ask them for a portion of it back, maybe as a

7

part of HSAC or something else.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

And since it's part of

Mr. Pontanilla's Committee, jurisdiction

10

department, since this program falls under his

11

department, you may want your Committee staff to

12

review again with personnel services.

13

Ms. Johnson says may be a consideration, then we

14

would need to know whether or not adjustments to

15

collective bargaining as relates to SHOPO is

16

involved.

17

If what

It's a lot more than you may think,

18

people.

So, please, don't just jump in before

19

you know how deep the water is.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. KOLLER:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Or how shallow.

Or how shallow.
Mr. Chair.
So that is why we will be asking for

24

the information first before I ask for you to

25

make any decisions.

Okay?
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Mr. Chair.
Yes, ma'am.
Just for information, regarding the

4

Animal Management revolving fund, this was set

5

up in 1997, and what goes into that is revenues

6

derived from fees for licensing, impounds,

7

redemptions, adoptions, and pickups of animals.

8

And then those fees

9

used for paying for an Animal Management

10

program.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MR. KOLLER:

or those funds are then

Okay.
The current year, Fiscal Year 2005, at

13

the end of this year is estimated to have

14

$62,600 in there, with revenue of 52,900 coming

15

in during the year, for a total of 115,500.

16

I believe that Councilmember Johnson is correct

17

that fines go to the State, but the fees to the

18

County.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And

Thank you for checking on that

20

special fund that Director Lee informed us of.

21

At the appropriate time, the Chair will make his

22

comments on potential uses of that funds.

23
24
25

Ms. Lee, any closing comments regarding
your Department's review this afternoon; please?
MS. LEE:

Mr. Chair, we just thank you for your
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1

consideration and hope you fund each and every

2

thing in our budget.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

request.

6

MR. ANDAYA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

That was a reasonable

Mr. Andaya, any comments?

5

8

Thank you.

No, no comments, Mr. Chair.
Budget Director, any closing comments

for the day?
MR. AGSALOG:

Just thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing

10

all the departments to come and explain their

11

requests to your Committee.

12

they will be able to present you some of their

13

requests as well as the highlights of their

14

Departments.

15

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I think that

So again, thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Lee.

Mr. Andaya.

17

Members, are there any announcements,

18

questions?

19

Monday, as we prepare for the island of Molokai.

20

Okay.

21

This meeting is adjourned.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

22

23

Other than that we will see you on

(Gavel.)
(excused: RC)

DEFER pending further

discussion.

24

ADJOURN:

4:13 p.m.
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1

2
3

STATE OF HAWAII

)
)
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU )

4
5

II

of Hawaii

SS:

CHARI L. POSSELL, Notary PublicI State

do hereby certify:

I

That the proceedings were taken down by me

6

7

in machine shorthand and were thereafter reduced to

8

typewriting under my supervision; that the foregoing

9

represents

I

to the best of my abilitYI a true and

10

correct transcript of the proceedings had in the

11

foregoing matter.

12

I further certify that I am not attorney

13

for any of the parties hereto

14

concerned with the cause.

15
16

l

nor in any way

DATED this 15th day of April, 2004, in
Honolulu, Hawaii.

17

18

cm&;h~~,

19

CSR NO. 414

Notary PublicI State of Hawaii
My Commission Exp: 7-25-2007
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